
www.lichfielddc.gov.uk /lichfielddc lichfield_dc MyStaffs App

Your ref
Our ref   
Ask for Christine Lewis

Email christine.lewis@lichfielddc.gov.uk

District Council House, Frog Lane
Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU

Customer Services 01543 308000
Direct Line 01543 308065

Monday, 9 December 2019
Dear Sir/Madam

ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Economic Growth, Environment and Development (Overview & Scrutiny) 
Committee has been arranged to take place TUESDAY, 17TH DECEMBER, 2019 at 6.00 
PM IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM District Council House, Lichfield to consider the following 
business.

Access to the Committee Room is via the Members’ Entrance.

Yours Faithfully

Neil Turner BSc (Hons) MSc
Director of Transformation & Resources

To: Members of Economic Growth, Environment and Development (Overview & 
Scrutiny) Committee

Councillors Cox (Chairman), Ball (Vice-Chair), S Wilcox (Vice-Chair), Binney, 
D Ennis, Gwilt, Ho, A Little, Marshall, Parton-Hughes, Ray, Warburton and Westwood

Public Document Pack



www.lichfielddc.gov.uk /lichfielddc lichfield_dc MyStaffs App

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 3 - 6

4. Lichfield City Centre Master Plan - Draft for Consultation 7 - 104



ECONOMIC GROWTH, ENVIRONMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (OVERVIEW 
& SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE

18 SEPTEMBER 2019

PRESENT:

Councillors Cox (Chairman), Ball (Vice-Chair), S Wilcox (Vice-Chair), Binney, A Little, 
Marshall, Warburton and Westwood.

(In accordance with Council Procedure Rule No.17 Councillors Eadie and Lax attended the 
meeting).

8 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ennis, Ho, Parton-Hughes and Ray

9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor A. Little declared a personal interest in item 6 – Amendments to Local List of 
Buildings of Local Architectural and Historic Interest as he owned a property on the list.

10 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting were signed as a correct record.  It was asked if the consideration 
of electric vehicle (EV) charging could be extended to wider areas than Lichfield City.  It was 
confirmed that it would be discussed further in the work programme.

11 WORK PROGRAMME 

The work programme was considered.  It was discussed and agreed to set up a task and 
finish group to consider Sunday car park charging.  The chairman suggested that the group 
could also address the issue of policy in respect of EV charging points.  In this regard it was 
noted that the city master planning exercise would be looking at EV charging options and this 
needed to be borne in mind.  

It was noted that there had been no further information received regarding the LEP review 
however the Chairman would be attending the GBSLEP Scrutiny meeting and would report 
back if he heard anything there.

It was noted that Councillor Ray had requested a standing item on the environmental impact 
of economic growth in the district and it was agreed to look at this further.

Members noted the special meeting scheduled for December 2019 to consider the Master 
planning report.
RESOLVED: That the work programme be noted and updated where required.

12 REVIEW OF THE OPERATION OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

The Committee received a report setting out a 12 month review of the performance and 
operation of the revised Planning Committee arrangements.  It was reported that changes 
were made including the reduction to 15 Members on the Committee, the use of the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Committee Room rather than the Chamber when lower public attendance is anticipated and 
three further Members trained to act as replacements if vacancies were to arise.

On the issue of meetings, it was asked if these could be held outside of Frog Lane and across 
the district as it would make it more accessible and desirable for the public to attend.  It was 
reported that there would be many factors to take into account including costs of hiring venues 
and potential loss of money if the meetings were to be cancelled which has happened in the 
past.  It was also noted that there could be logistic issues in moving equipment if required 
along with access to case files.

The location of meetings at Frog Lane was then discussed and the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee, Councillor Marshall stated that he preferred the Council Chamber as there were 
no concerns regarding seating for the public that attend.  However this was not withstanding 
that the presentation and audio equipment there needed updating to be more useful for the 
public attending.  The Principle Planning Officer was asked his thoughts on the rooms used to 
hold Committee meetings and he reported that the Committee Room did make for better 
discussions but meetings were more formal in the Council Chamber which was better for 
consideration of larger planning applications.

The number of Committee members on the Planning Committee was considered and it was 
agreed that 15 Members worked well and was the optimum number.  It was also agreed that 
attendance was important and this should be emphasised to the Committee Members. It was 
agreed that attendance also applied to planning training.  It was asked if there was some merit 
into considering sharing training opportunities with neighbouring authorities and it was agreed 
to investigate this further.

The cycle of meetings was discussed and there was some feeling that moving to four weekly 
had made the agendas congested and applications were being considered quicker than was 
appropriate.  It was reported that the previous three weekly cycle put more pressure on 
officers as there was no break in producing reports for the next Committee agenda. It was also 
noted that there was pressure on the Parish Council’s to consider applications within their 
meeting cycles.

The Cabinet Member agreed to take all comments on board and investigate points raised 
further.

RESOLVED: (1) That the size of the Planning Committee remain at 15 Members; and

(2) That the layout of the Committee Room be given further consideration 
to maximise capacity of the public gallery, where possible, so it may continue to be used on 
occasion, whilst continuing with use of the Council Chamber for the majority of Committees 
particularly when larger public galleries are anticipated.

(3) That consideration be given to the potential enhancement of the 
presentation equipment available within the Council Chamber going forward.

13 AMENDMENTS TO LOCAL LIST OF BUILDINGS OF LOCAL ARCHITECTURAL AND 
HISTORIC INTEREST 

The Committee received a report on the results of the public consultation on the proposed 
amendments to the Council’s List of Buildings of Local Architectural and Historic Interest and 
seeking support for the final, amended proposals and their recommendations for approval to 
the Cabinet and Full Council.

The Committee was pleased to note that this was a phased programme to include areas 
outside the Conservation Areas to ensure all heritage assets were included on the list. As the 
programme would be based on parishes, it was suggested taking it to Parish Forum as that 

Page 4



input could be invaluable.  When asked, it was confirmed that Development Management 
Officers did check if a building was one or should be considered to be added when planning 
applications were received.

It was also noted and agreed that War memorials would be removed from the local list as they 
were designated as listed buildings.

The Committee also noted the high response rate from the consultation and the valuable 
comments made.  The Committee were also pleased to see the number of properties linked to 
St Matthews Hospital in Burntwood as it was a great example of building in the Victorian era.  
It was also agreed that it was correct to remove the Squash Club at Spinney Lane as there 
had been a great loss in architectural merit through redevelopment.

There was some discussion regarding tenants of properties responding and it was asked if 
this was appropriate as they were not the owners.  It was reported that the consultation was 
sent to properties addressed to owner/occupier and it was agreed that this should be made 
clearer in the future that it is for owners/landlords or management companies only.

RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the results of the consultation, supports the final 
proposed amendments to the Council’s List of Buildings of Local Architectural and Historic 
Interest and recommend they be submitted to the Cabinet and Full Council for approval.

14 LOCAL PLAN UPDATE 

The Committee received a report updating the Committee on the Local Plan and it was 
reported that the period for legal challenge to the Local Plan Allocations had passed with none 
received and so the Council now had a complete and up to date Local Plan. 

There was significant debate regarding infrastructure and the Committee had concerns that 
there was greater need to address this and specifically before development.  There were 
concerns with not just highway pressures but also environmental issues including air quality 
and the impact this was having on residents as well as health provision and access to basic 
retail.  Highway infrastructure was discussed further and there were concerns that the County 
Council did not take into account the knock on effect of numerous developments when giving 
advice and their representations to the Development Management department.  It was 
suggested that the Committee may wish to invite SCC Highways representatives to a future 
meeting to discuss their rationale in these situations.  It was noted that CIL could be used if 
required to help develop infrastructure if required.  Rail infrastructure was debated and it was 
noted that without good rail access, economic benefits would be lost to other areas.  It was 
reported that the leader and Deputy Leader of the Council would be meeting with West 
Midlands Rail representatives to discuss this further.

The green belt was discussed and it was noted that there may be a need to lose it in some 
areas and designate new areas to accommodate growth or new settlements.  The Committee 
stated that the Local Plan Sub Group had received much information on this area and had 
worked hard in producing documents regarding this subject.

Housing growth was then discussed and it was noted that the need for housing was growing 
with the population and without housing it would be a loss of Council tax which was greatly 
needed.

Officers were thanked for their continued hard work on Spatial Policy.  Special mention was 
given to Ashley Baldwin, Spatial Policy Manager as it was reported that he would be leaving 
the Authority to take up a new post.  The Committee expressed their gratitude for all his 
advice and input to the Committee and noted his presence would be missed.

RESOLVED: (1) That the progress associated with the Local Plan Review be noted;

Page 5



(2) That the potential scale and distribution of growth identified within the 
report be noted;

(3) That the minutes of the Local Plan Sub Group be noted; and

(4) That the consultation proposals be recommended to Cabinet

(The Meeting closed at 7.40 pm)

CHAIRMAN

Page 6



Lichfield City Centre Master Plan – Draft for 
Consultation
Report of the Cabinet Member for Investment, Economic Growth & Tourism
Councillor I. Eadie
Date: 17 December 2019
Contact Officer: Craig Jordan
Tel Number: 01543 308202
Email: craig.jordan@lichfielddc.gov.uk

Local Ward 
Members

All Members

Economic Growth, 
Environment and 
Development (Overview 
and Scrutiny) 
Committee 

1. Executive Summary
1.1 The Council has previously agreed to commission consultants to carry out a master planning exercise for 

Lichfield city centre.  The consultants – David Lock Associates - have now prepared a Draft Lichfield City 
Centre Masterplan which it is proposed the Council now consults upon for four weeks from early January 
2020. The Draft Masterplan and additional promotional material is appended to this report. (See 
appendices A & B)

2. Recommendations
2.1 That the Committee notes the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan and agrees to its publication from 

the 6th January 2020 to 3rd February 2020 for consultation purposes. 

3. Background

Lichfield city centre – master planning 

3.1 Members will recall previous reports to this committee in June and September 2019, firstly explaining 
that the Council was in the process of appointing consultants to carry out a master planning exercise for 
Lichfield city centre and subsequently, updating members as to the work programme and timetable  and 
the work currently being undertaken.  Members will also recall, the preparation of the draft Masterplan 
is partly in response to the demise of the former Friarsgate scheme on Birmingham Road but also 
recognition of a number of pressures and challenges facing all centres and high streets and a desire to 
map out a future strategy for the longer term sustainability of Lichfield city centre. The masterplan is 
being prepared in the context of the adopted Local Plan, the emerging Local Plan and the aspirations in 
the Lichfield City Centre Development Strategy and Action Plan and the objectives of the Lichfield City 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Stages of preparation

3.2 In accordance with the work programme and timetable agreed between the Council and the consultant, 
David Lock Associates, the consultant the masterplan is being developed in three stages.  These are as 
follows: 

 Stage 1 (undertaken 29th July 2019 to 30th September 2019) – Baseline review & Analysis. This work 
provided analysis and review of all existing information relating to the city centre. It built upon the work 
already carried out by the Council including the results of engagement with stakeholders and the general 
public focussed on the Birmingham Road site early on in 2019. This has subsequently been supplemented 
by a number of initial one-to-one conversations with key LDC officers, representatives of statutory 
consultees, local elected members and other interested parties this Autumn.  The work culminated in an 
Analysis, Issues and Options Report provided to members and which has been published in advance of 
the draft masterplan and is available to view on the council’s website.

 Stage 2 (to be carried out 7th October 2019 to 3rd February 2020) – This is the current stage and involves 
the preparation of the draft masterplan which has been informed by the issues and options stage one. 
Six key objectives were developed from stage 1 and are carried through to the draft master plan. These 
are: A Strong Historic Core, Complementary & Supporting Uses, Welcoming Gateways, Vibrant Streets 
& Spaces, Quality Accessible Environment and the Green & Sustainable City. Development 
opportunities and public realm priorities have also been identified to help meet the six objectives. The 
masterplan identifies short, medium and longer term opportunities, to ensure it is also achievable and 
deliverable within the 2040 timescale of the Council’s emerging Local Plan. In line with the timetable, it 
is proposed that the draft masterplan is published for consultation purposes from the 6th January 2020 
to 3rd February 2020

 Stage 3 (3rd February 2020 to 10th April 2020) - The third and final stage will involve revisions to the 
masterplan based on the outcomes of the consultation. The final masterplan will then be considered by 
members for approval and thus help guide further development within the city centre. The programme 
indicates a finalised plan will be provided for consideration by EGED at its meeting on 11th March 2020 
and then presented to Cabinet on the 10th April.

3.3     An officer group comprising representatives of the District Council, Staffordshire County Council and 
Lichfield City Council is overseeing the work of DLA and ensuring compliance with the agreed tender 
brief and specification, including delivery in accordance with the contract and the associated agreed 
timetable and programme – See Appendix C. 

Summary and next steps

3.4     Attached at Appendix A is a draft master plan prepared by DLA.  It is now presented for member 
consideration and with the intention that subject to members being happy with the overall content 
and direction of the master plan it is made available for public consultation in the new year.  Details of 
the consultation exercise are appended at Appendix B which the Committee is asked to note.

3.5       Assuming members are content with the draft master plan, following consultation DLA will review the 
responses and other relevant information and finalise the master plan   The final masterplan will then 
subsequently be brought back to this committee on the 11th March 2020 and then presented Cabinet 
for approval on 10th April 2020.

Alternative Options        1.   Members could request fundamental changes to the Draft Masterplan 
prior to its publication for consultation purposes.  If this was the case the 
consultants would need to consider the extent to which they would need 

Page 8



to review their work to date and if it was possible or appropriate to make 
amendments.   Whilst there may be reason to amend certain aspects of 
the proposals as presented, it would be inappropriate to question the 
legitimacy of the work carried out by the consultants or to suggest 
changes which significantly alter the overall approach that the consultants 
are recommending.  This would go to the heart of the commission and the 
reasons why DLA was chosen to undertake the exercise. 

Consultation 1. The Draft Masterplan has been informed by previous consultation on 
proposals for the Birmingham road site in spring 2019 and subsequent 
conversations with relevant LDC officers, local elected members, members 
of the project group and key stakeholders

2. Consultation will be undertaken on the draft master plan proposals from 
6th January to 3rd February 2020 through a range of media engagement 
methods to ensure as broad a cross section of the community has the 
opportunity to articulate their views and opinions.

Financial 
Implications

1. There are no financial implications arising out of this report.  

Contribution to the 
Delivery of the 
Strategic Plan

1. The master planning process will help support and deliver the Council’s 
strategic objective of promoting a vibrant and prosperous economy. 

2. They will also support the priorities of achieving healthy and safe 
communities and clean, green and welcoming places to live 

Crime & Safety 
Issues

1. None.

GDPR/Privacy 
Impact Assessment

1. Not applicable.

Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk (RYG)
A The Draft Masterplan is not approved 

for consultation purposes by the 
Committee

Members have previously participated 
in stakeholder sessions and an 
Analysis, Issues & Options report has 
been circulated and published.

Yellow

B The Draft Masterplan will contain 
proposals for the use of land which 
could be considered controversial 

The plan is draft and is being consulted 
upon. The responses will be 
considered and the plan amended 
before being considered for final 
approval.

Yellow

Equality, Diversity 
and Human Rights 
Implications

1.     None.

Page 9



Background documents

Lichfield City Centre Masterplan: Analysis, Issues & Options Report (October 2019)

Relevant web links

Lichfield City Centre Masterplan: Analysis, Issues & Options Report (October 2019) https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/strategies-
plans-policies/shaping-future-lichfield-city-centre/1

Page 10

https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/strategies-plans-policies/shaping-future-lichfield-city-centre/1
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/strategies-plans-policies/shaping-future-lichfield-city-centre/1


Appendix A – Draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Prepared for Lichfied District Council
Produced by David Lock Associates
In collaboration with Integrated Transport Planning & Springboard

December 2019

MASTERPLAN REPORT

DRAFT

Page 13



Page 14



1.0	 INTRODUCTION	 	 	 	 	 	 04
	 What	is	the	Lichfield	City	Centre	Masterplan?	 	 	 04
	 Preparation	of	the	Masterplan	 	 	 	 	 07

2.0	 MASTERPLAN	CONTEXT	AND	ANALYSIS	 	 	 08
	 Understanding	Lichfield	–	Key	Themes	 	 	 	 08
	 Characterising	Lichfield	–	City	Signature		 	 	 12
	 Getting	around	Lichfield	–	Access	and	Movement		 	 13
	 What	does	the	Masterplan	Propose?	 	 	 	 14
	 Masterplan	Objectives	 	 	 	 	 15
	 Masterplan	Quarters	–	Ensuring	a	Comprehensive	Approach	 18
	 Masterplan	Development	Opportunities	and	Public	Realm	Priorities	 26
	 Masterplan	Transition	Areas	 	 	 	 	 28
	 Masterplan	Design	Principles	–	Ensuring	Design	Quality	 	 30

3.0	 DEVELOPMENT	OPPORTUNITIES	 	 	 	 36
	 1.	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	 	 	 	 	 38
	 2.	District	Council	House	 	 	 	 	 42
	 3.	Bird	Street	Courtyard	 	 	 	 	 44
	 4.	University	West	Car	Park	 	 	 	 	 48

4.0	 PUBLIC	REALM	PRIORITIES		 	 	 	 50
	 A.	Birmingham	Road	Corridor	 	 	 	 	 52
	 B.	Lichfield	Transport	Hub	 	 	 	 	 53
	 C.	Bird	Street	Walk	 	 	 	 	 	 54
	 D.	Circular	Minster	Pool	Walk	 	 	 	 	 55
	 E.	Pedestrian	priority	streets	 	 	 	 	 56
	 F.	Pedestrian	walkways	and	linkages	 	 	 	 57
	 G.	Signage	and	wayfinding	 	 	 	 	 58

5.0	 DELIVERING	THE	MASTERPLAN	 	 	 	 59
	 Introduction		 	 	 	 	 	 59
	 Delivery	Strategy	 	 	 	 	 	 60
	 Viability	 	 	 	 	 	 	 60
	 Implementation	process	 	 	 	 	 61
	 Timescales	 	 	 	 	 	 	 68
	 Lichfield	District	Council’s	Role	&	Funding		 	 	 69

	 APPENDIX	1	 	 	 	 	 	 70
	 Birmingham	Road	Gateway	Delivery	Routes	 	 	 70

CONTENTS

00

3LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 15



What is the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan?

1.1	 Lichfield	District	Council	has	appointed	a	team	of	town	planning	and	urban	design	specialists,	led	by	David	
Lock	Associates	(DLA),	to	produce	a	new	masterplan	for	Lichfield	city	centre.	The	DLA	team	are	supported	
by	Springboard	(city	centre	characterisation	specialists)	and	Integrated	Transport	Planning	(ITP).	

1.2	 The	masterplan	will	be	an	important	document	that	will	shape	the	future	growth	of	the	city	centre,	set	
out	opportunities	for	enhancing	the	quality	of	the	city	centre	environment	and	the	range	of	different	
uses	it	offers,	and	provide	a	prospectus	for	investment	in	Lichfield.	The	District	Council	consider	the	
masterplan	to	be	a	key	means	of	enhancing	what	is	already	a	strong	and	vibrant	city	centre,	and	
its	preparation	underscores	the	importance	of	the	city	centre	as	an	asset	for	residents	of	Lichfield,	
visitors	to	the	city,	and	those	who	work	in	Lichfield.	

1.3	 The	masterplan	is	being	prepared	in	order	to	add	detail	to	and	help	implement	policies	set	out	within	
the	emerging	Local	Plan,	the	aspirations	contained	within	the	Lichfield	City	Centre	Development	
Strategy	and	Action	Plan	and	the	objectives	of	the	Lichfield	City	Neighbourhood	Plan.		The	
masterplan	is	supported	by	a	Delivery	Strategy,	to	help	ensure	that	proposals	in	the	masterplan	are	
both	achievable	and	deliverable.		The	masterplan	will	be	considered	as	part	of	the	Local	Plan	review	
process	and	any	future	Development	Briefs	for	specific	sites.

INTRODUCTION

01

4 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 16



1.4	 The	District	Councils’	aspirations	are	to	build	upon	the	City	of	
Lichfield’s	existing	offer	as	a	key	location	within	the	District	and	a	
focus	for	investment	and	growth:	

Lichfield City Centre will be promoted as a strategic 
centre by improving its range of shopping, leisure, 
business, cultural, education and tourist facilities whilst 
sustaining and enhancing the significance of its historic 
environment and heritage assets and their setting. 
Preferred policy: Lichfield economy, Local Plan Review 
– Preferred Options and Policy Directions, 2019 

1.5	 As	well	as	supporting	emerging	planning	policy,	the	projects	set	
out	in	the	masterplan	will	also	be	used	to	shape	the	future	of	the	
city	centre	by	encouraging	appropriate	land	uses	and	public	realm	
improvements	(the	streets,	public	spaces	and	everything	contained	
within	those	spaces)	to	ensure	Lichfield	continues	to	prosper	in	
a	sustainable	way	which	is	sensitive	to	the	city’s	character.	The	
city	centre	will	continue	to	be	a	vibrant	place	that	people	enjoy	
for	a	variety	of	reasons,	as	a	home,	a	place	to	relax	and	shop,	for	
recreation	or	to	work.

1.6	 The	masterplan	is	part	of	the	wider	work	by	local	public	services	
and	partners	to	manage	growth	in	Lichfield	to	improve	and	support	
the	economy,	encourage	more	jobs,	enable	housing	development,	
create	opportunities	and	support	the	well-being	of	communities.	
As	such	the	masterplan	draws	together	a	range	of	related	and	
complementary	initiatives	covering	economic	development,	
community	activities,	leisure	and	well-being,	access	and	movement,	
accommodating	growth	and	preserving	and	enhancing	the	historic	
and	cultural	environment	of	the	city.

1.7	 With	this	in	mind,	the	masterplan	is	a	flexible	framework	rather	than	
a	rigid	blueprint,	setting	out	clear	aspirations	that	the	District	Council	
would	like	to	achieve	while	being	able	to	accommodate	potential	
future	need.		This	will	be	subject	to	the	work	of	all	partners	as	well	
as	the	availability	of	funding.		It	is	an	enabling	document,	providing	
opportunities	for	beneficial	investment	and	change,	but	mindful	of	
protecting	those	qualities	that	make	Lichfield	special,	particularly	its	
historic	environment.	

5LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 17



6 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 18



Preparation of the Masterplan

1.8	 The	masterplan	is	being	prepared	in	three	main	stages:			

STAGE ONE: BASELINE REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
1.9	 The	first	stage	was	analysis	and	review	of	all	existing	information	about	the	city	

centre.	This	stage	of	the	masterplan	built	on	work	already	undertaken	by	the	
District	Council,	including	issues	identified	through	previous	stakeholder	and	
community	engagement	exercises,	particularly	those	which	focussed	on	the	
Birmingham	Road	site	in	Spring	2019.		

1.10	 The	evidence	base	has	been	supplemented	by	a	number	of	initial	one-to-one	
conversations	with	key	officers,	local	elected	members,	members	of	the	project	
group	and	key	stakeholders.	The	‘Analysis,	Issues	and	Options	Report’	is	the	
culmination	of	the	stage	one	work.	The	report	has	been	published	in	advance	of	
the	draft	masterplan	and	is	available	to	view	on	the	District	Council’s	website.	

STAGE TWO: DRAFT MASTERPLAN
1.11	 The	second	stage	(this	current	stage)	is	the	preparation	of	the	draft	masterplan,	

which	has	been	informed	by	the	issues	and	options	identified	in	stage	one.		Six	
key	objectives	were	developed	from	the	issues	and	options	identified.		These	
objectives	have	shaped	the	development	of	the	masterplan.		Development	
opportunities	and	public	realm	priorities	have	also	been	identified	to	help	meet	
these	six	objectives.	

1.12	 The	masterplan	is	aspirational	whilst	continuing	to	support	and	facilitate	the	
vitality	and	characteristics	of	the	city	centre	that	make	it	attractive	and	popular.		
The	masterplan	is	also	practical	and,	importantly,	deliverable.		The	masterplan	
identifies	short,	medium-	and	longer-term	opportunities,	to	ensure	it	is	also	
achievable	and	deliverable	within	the	2040	timescale	of	the	Local	Plan.	

1.13	 This	Draft	Masterplan	report	will	be	subject	to	a	four-week	period	of	
consultation	and	engagement	with	residents	of,	businesses	and	services	in,	and	
visitors	to	the	city,	as	well	as	other	stakeholders.	

STAGE THREE: FINAL MASTERPLAN
1.14	 The	third	and	final	stage	will	involve	revisions	to	the	masterplan,	based	on	the	

outcomes	of	the	consultation.		The	final	masterplan	will	then	be	published	by	
the	Council,	to	help	guide	future	development	within	the	city	centre.

7LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 19



Understanding Lichfield 
– Key Themes 

2.1	 The	historic	city	of	Lichfield	is	located	in	
Staffordshire,	around	18	miles	to	the	north	of	
Birmingham.	Lichfield	is	well	connected	to	the	
local	and	strategic	highway	network,	and	is	
served	by	two	railway	stations,	Lichfield	City	
and	Lichfield	Trent	Valley.	Lichfield	District	has	
a	population	of	a	little	over	100,600	of	which	
32,000	live	in	the	city.	The	city	has	a	strong	
history	with	the	city	skyline	dominated	by	
the	cathedral	which	is	the	only	three	spired	
medieval	cathedral	in	England.	The	city’s	
market	was	first	chartered	in	1153,	and	the	
market	square	is	another	historic	focus	in	the	
city	centre.	

MASTERPLAN CONTEXT & ANALYSIS

02
2.2	 In	order	to	fully	appreciate	the	rich	and	varied	

context	of	Lichfield,	and	to	provide	a	robust	
evidence	base	from	which	to	draft	the	city	
centre	masterplan,	a	comprehensive	baseline	
review	and	analysis	has	been	undertaken	
by	the	project	team.	The	review	and	analysis	
focused	on	three	main	areas:

	Ŋ Background	documents	comprising	existing	
studies,	appraisals,	policies	and	plans	(the	
‘evidence	base’	for	the	city	centre)	including	
physical	character	and	function	on	its	
strengths,	opportunities	and	historic	growth;

	Ŋ The	property	market	in	Lichfield	and	its	place	
‘characterisation’	and	‘footfall	signature’	
to	understand	the	city’s	primary	role	and	
function;	and	

	Ŋ Access	and	movement	around	the	city	centre.	

2.3	 From	the	review	and	analysis,	a	number	of	
key	themes	have	been	identified,	which	are	
summarised	below.	In	addition,	information	on	
the	city’s	signature,	and	accessibility	are	also	
summarised	on	the	following	pages.	

8 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 20



Preserve & enhance the 
historic environment

2.4	 Lichfield	is	a	historic	cathedral	city	with	
a	significant	number	of	listed	buildings	
(including	the	Grade	I	Listed	cathedral)	
and	heritage	assets	located	within	the	
Lichfield	City	Conservation	Area.	The	
historic	character	and	quality	of	the	
centre	is	a	key	attractor	for	visitors.

2.5	 It	is	important	that	any	new	development	
is	sympathetic	to	the	historic	character	
of	the	city.		It	is	also	important	to	ensure	
that	views	of	important	historic	buildings,	
including	the	spires	of	the	cathedral	
are	retained	across	the	city	centre,	and	
consideration	given	to	where	new	vistas	
could	be	introduced.

9LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 21



Support & provide a vibrant mix 
of uses in the city centre

2.6	 The	combination	of	residential,	commercial,	cultural,	visitor	and	religious	uses	
ensures	that	Lichfield	has	a	vibrant	and	prosperous	city	centre	with	a	special	
character.		Whilst	Lichfield	does	not	contain	many	of	the	national	retail	chains	and	
stores	typical	of	larger	towns	and	city	centres,	niche	and	artisan	retail	are	a	key	
component	of	Lichfield’s	character.	This	means	Lichfield	has	a	unique	retail	offer	to	
attract	visitors.	

2.7	 Lichfield	city	centre	benefits	from	an	existing	night-time	economy,	particularly	
at	weekends.	New	development	should	seek	to	complement,	not	compete	with,	
the	existing	offer.	Where	new	retail	is	introduced,	the	focus	should	be	on	niche,	
independent	retailers,	as	part	of	a	wider	mix.

2.8	 Nationally,	most	high	streets	and	city	centres	are	shifting	towards	a	more	experience-
led	offer.	Leisure	uses	and	restaurants	are	key	considerations,	and	the	evidence	
review	suggests	a	need	to	cater	for	a	younger	demographic.		Improving	the	leisure	
offer,	could	increase	dwell	time	and	attract	visitors	from	a	wider	catchment	area.

2.9	 Residential	uses	are	often	incorporated	into	city	centres	to	improve	the	night-time	
economy.	The	city	centre	is	currently	experiencing	a	surge	in	retirement	housing,	
and	this	should	be	balanced	with	other	forms	of	housing,	including	affordable	units.

10 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 22



Enhance the tourism economy

2.10	 The	city	centre	is	well	positioned	to	meet	the	leisure	and	cultural	needs	of	Lichfield	
and	the	wider	sub-region,	through	its	existing	range	of	leisure	and	cultural	venues,	
including	the	Garrick	Theatre,	the	Samuel	Johnson	Birthplace	Museum	and	Erasmus	
Darwin	House.		

2.11	 Festivals,	concerts	and	the	light	illuminations	over	the	festive	period	are	extremely	
popular,	but	the	city	centre	has	the	capacity	to	accommodate	more	events	and	
visitors.		The	provision	of	a	multi-purpose	community	venue	to	host	a	programme	
of	cultural/arts	events	could	also	cater	for	a	variety	of	different	uses,	including	by	
existing	local	groups	and	commercial	businesses.		In	addition,	hotel	and	other	types	
of	visitor	accommodation	would	encourage	longer	stays.

2.12	 Existing	facilities,	such	as	public	toilets,	are	not	considered	adequate	to	serve	the	
city’s	population	and	its	visitors.	There	are	too	few	facilities,	and	the	existing	are	
often	unpleasant.		Public	facilities	should	be	clean,	attractive	and	convenient	to	use	
to	enhance	the	visitor’s	overall	experience	and	to	encourage	repeat	visits.

2.13	 Lichfield	city	centre	has	a	strong	tourism-based	economy.		However,	parts	of	
the	city	centre	can	feel	disjointed	due	to	poor	legibility	and	signage,	particularly	
between	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	and	the	cathedral.		The	gateway	into	the	city	
is	unattractive,	and	visitors	may	miss	out	on	some	of	the	city’s	attractions,	due	to	
difficulties	in	navigating	their	way	around	the	city	centre.

2.14	 For	a	cathedral	city	with	such	a	range	of	attractions,	Lichfield	is	not	as	widely	known	
as	a	visitor	destination	as	it	might	be.	There	should	be	a	drive	towards	raising	the	
profile	of	Lichfield	as	a	destination,	highlighting	what	the	city	has	to	offer	to	encourage	
a	greater	number	of	visitors.		This	could	be	linked	with	other	major	attractors	in	
the	nearby	area,	such	as	Drayton	Manor	Theme	Park	and	the	National	Memorial	
Arboretum,	to	encourage	visitors	to	spend	longer	periods	of	time	in	Lichfield.

Support commercial activity

2.15	 Job	creation	in	the	city	centre	promotes	local	employment	and	helps	to	reduce	the	
level	of	out	commuting	to	neighbouring	towns	and	cities.		There	is	an	increasing	
demand	for	flexible,	small	scale	offices	in	Lichfield	to	support	SMEs	and	start-up	
businesses.		Providing	for	such	office	floorspace	could	work	towards	attracting	and	
retaining	a	younger	demographic	to	the	city	centre	and	in	enhancing	links	to	South	
Staffordshire	College.

Maintain a public realm and open 
spaces of the highest quality

2.16	 Lichfield	city	centre	has	a	variety	of	public	spaces,	including	Market	Place,	Beacon	
Park,	Minster	Pool	and	Stowe	Pool	which	are	valued	by	the	existing	community	and	
by	visitors.		These	important	spaces	should	be	maintained	and	enhanced.		There	is	
the	potential	to	extend	the	provision	of	landscape	planting	and	public	spaces	within	
the	heart	of	the	city	centre,	to	encourage	dwell	time.	

	

11LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 23



����������

��������

�������������

�������������

������
���

���	�����

������
�������

��	������

���������

�������������������

�����	

	���������
��������	������
�������
���	������

Characterising Lichfield – City Signature 

2.17	 It	is	important	to	understand	Lichfield’s	
role	and	function	as	a	centre	to	be	able	to	
identify	appropriate	uses	which	will	support	
and	complement	its	growth	in	a	sustainable	
way,	over	the	coming	years.		For	Lichfield	to	
maximise	its	potential	and	future-proof	itself,	
it	is	critical	that	it	adopts	strategies	that	are	
appropriate	for	its	“signature”	(as	set	out	
more	fully	in	the	‘Analysis,	Issues	and	Options	
Report’).	

2.18	 An	analysis	has	been	undertaken	by	
Springboard	of	Lichfield’s	pattern	of	usage	
in	terms	of	pedestrian	footfall.		Historically,	
town	and	city	classifications	have	been	based	
on	supply	side	factors	only,	e.g.	the	number	
of	retail	units.		However,	the	significant	shifts	
in	consumer	demand	that	have	occurred	
between	online	and	bricks	and	mortar	has	
resulted	in	significant	changes	in	town	and	
city	centre	occupancy,	rendering	these	historic	
classifications	out	of	date.		Analysing	a	city	in	
terms	of	its	usage	is	more	relevant	in	today’s	
multi-channel	trading	landscape	(i.e.	town	and	
city	centres	today	are	no	longer	simply	about	
retail).

2.19	 Lichfield	has	a	Speciality	signature.		One	of	
the	key	characteristics	of	Speciality	towns	and	
cities	is	that	footfall	is	as	high	or	higher	in	the	
peak	summer	months	than	in	December.		This	
pattern	of	footfall	is	a	consequence	of	the	key	
characteristics	of	speciality	towns	and	cities	
which	comprise:	

	Ŋ An	Anchor	which	is	not	retail,	e.g.	heritage	
	Ŋ Attracting	visitors	but	serve	local	population	
	Ŋ Having	longer	dwell	time	
	Ŋ Focus	is	on	protecting	identity	and	positioning	
	Ŋ Offering	something	unique	and	special	

2.20	 Lichfield	is	the	only	city	in	its	subregion	(as	
illustrated	in	Figure	1)	that	is	defined	as	a	
Speciality	town/city.		This	offers	Lichfield	an	
opportunity	to	differentiate	itself	from	other	
towns	and	cities,	and	to	deliver	a	unique	offer	
that	capitalises	on	its	Speciality	signature	type.	

	

Figure 1: Signature of local towns and cities

12 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 24



Getting around Lichfield – Access & Movement 

TRAVELLING TO & FROM LICHFIELD
2.21	 Lichfield	strongly	benefits	from	being	well-

connected	to	Birmingham,	London	and	the	
rest	of	the	UK	by	rail	and	road.		This	serves	the	
city	centre	by	encouraging	tourists	to	visit,	and	
workers	to	commute	inwards	and	outwards.		It	
is	important	to	consider	the	quality	of	these	key	
gateways,	particularly	ensuring	that	they	are	
safe,	attractive	and	convenient	to	use.

2.22	 Congestion	on	Birmingham	Road	and	St	
John	Street	needs	to	be	addressed	and	the	
proposed	Lichfield	Southern	Bypass	aims	to	
alleviate	some	of	this	congestion	by	removing	
through	trips	from	the	city	centre.	Congestion	
impacts	the	experience	of	car,	bus	and	coach	
movements	through	the	city,	but	also	the	safety	
of	pedestrians	and	cyclists	alighting	from	
Lichfield	City	Train	Station.

2.23	 The	city	centre	is	well	served	by	a	variety	of	
car	parks	but	suffers	from	a	perception	that	
there	is	a	scarcity	of	parking	spaces.		In	fact,	
information	on	car	park	availability	and	usage	
across	the	city	centre	suggests	that	overall	
capacity	is	good	for	a	city	the	size	of	Lichfield,	
but	that	the	most	popular	locations	such	as	
Bird	Street	operate	over	capacity.	

2.24	 Given	that	Lichfield	has	a	compact	and	
walkable	city	centre	it	will	be	important	to	
better	distribute	usage	across	the	various	
parking	facilities	and	thus	reducing	the	
perception	of	parking	scarcity.	Improved	
signage	to	existing	car	parks	can	help	
ensure	that	all	locations	are	suitably	utilised.		
Improvements	to	coach	drop-off	and	parking	
locations	are	required	to	promote	increased	
group	travel.		In	addition,	improving	signage	
and	wayfinding	around	the	city	centre	will	help	
people	navigate	their	way	around,	reinforcing	
the	compact	character	of	the	city	centre	and	
giving	people	confidence	to	explore	further	
whilst	at	the	same	time	promoting	active	and	
sustainable	modes	of	travel.	

2.25	 Sustainable	transport	is	a	key	consideration,	
shaping	how	infrastructure	improvements	
can	be	used	to	encourage	more	sustainable	
means	of	travel,	be	it	walking,	cycling	or	the	
use	of	public	transport.		Provision	of	Electric	
Vehicle	Charging	points	could	also	provide	an	
additional	option,	to	help	promote	the	up-take	
of	more	sustainable	modes	of	travel.	

MOVING AROUND THE CITY CENTRE
2.26	 Lichfield	benefits	from	being	compact	in	form,	

with	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	providing	
access	to	Lichfield	cathedral	and	the	historic	
city	core	within	a	10	minutes’	walk.		Improved	
pedestrian	and	cycle	routes	are	required	to	
help	to	encourage	people	to	walk	and	cycle	and	
utilise	public	transport	services,	rather	than	rely	
on	the	private	car.		

2.27	 There	is	the	opportunity	to	review	existing	
pedestrianised	areas	within	the	city	to	
provide	greater	clarity	on	those	areas	which	
are	pedestrianised	and	those	which	are	not.		
Pedestrianised	areas	within	the	city	centre	
need	to	be	carefully	considered	to	balance	the	
needs	of	those	requiring	access	to	blue	badge	
parking	spaces	and	also	allowing	for	access	to	
servicing	areas.

2.28	 The	city	centre	is	widely	recognised	as	being	
poorly	signposted,	with	little	to	no	means	for	
visitors	to	easily	identify	the	best	route	to	reach	
the	city’s	key	attractions.		In	seeking	to	promote	
the	city	as	a	tourist	destination,	it	will	become	
increasingly	important	to	provide	clear,	legible	
signage	and	wayfinding	across	the	city	centre.

	

13LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 25



What does the Masterplan Propose?

2.29	 The	masterplan	is	structured	around	the	following	four	core	proposals.		These	
proposals	have	regard	to	the	analysis	undertaken	and	the	issues	that	need	to	be	
addressed	to	maintain	the	city	centre	as	a	vibrant,	successful	and	valued	place.

3. MASTERPLAN OPPORTUNITY 
AREAS & PUBLIC REALM PRIORITIES 

The	masterplan	proposes	a	number	of	
projects	and	proposals	which	includes	
new	developments,	new	streets	and	
spaces,	and	enhancements	to	existing	

places	in	the	city	centre.	The	projects	and	
proposals	help	reinforce	the	character	of	
the	city	Quarters,	diversify	the	range	of	
uses	and	activities	available	in	the	city	

centre,	and	making	it	easier	to	arrive	in	the	
city	centre	and	then	move	around	it.

4. MASTERPLAN DESIGN PRINCIPLES 
The	masterplan	design	principles	have	been	
devised	to	help	ensure	that	development	
coming	forward	in	the	city	centre	achieves	
high	levels	of	quality	commensurate	with	its	
outstanding	historic	character.	The	design	
principles	should	be	read	in	conjunction	

with	other	local	and	national	design	policies.	
Development	that	does	not	contribute	
to	the	character	of	the	city	centre,	or	

enhances	its	vitality	and	viability,	will	not	
be	supported	by	the	District	Council.	

1. MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES 
Six	masterplan	objectives	have	been	identified.	

The	aim	of	the	objectives	is	to	twofold:	
firstly,	to	help	capture	and	address	identified	
issues	in	the	city	centre;	and	secondly	to	

help	underpin	projects	and	proposals	set	out	
in	the	masterplan	and	how	they	contribute	

towards	addressing	identified	issues.

2. MASTERPLAN QUARTERS 
In	order	to	better	understand	the	city	centre,	
and	provide	a	means	of	focusing	investment,	
the	masterplan	identifies	four	overlapping	
city	Quarters.	These	are	based	on	patterns	

of	existing	activity	and	movement,	the	
historic	environment,	and	on	places	where	
investment	should	be	targeted.	They	are	

interconnected	by	key	movement	routes	and	
streets	across	and	around	the	city	centre.

2.30	 Further	information	on	each	of	the	masterplan	core	
proposals	is	provided	on	the	following	pages.		

14 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 26



Masterplan Objectives 

2.31	 Lichfield	is	a	well-preserved	historic	cathedral	city.		This	rich	and	varied	historic	
environment	is	the	defining	characteristic	of	the	city	centre	and	is	the	primary	draw	
for	visitors	to	Lichfield.		The	masterplan	aims	to	ensure	that	the	historic	fabric	and	
environment	of	the	city	centre	is	valued,	preserved	and	enhanced.		The	majority	of	
the	city	centre	lies	within	the	Lichfield	City	Conservation	Area,	which	contains	a	high	
concentration	of	listed	buildings	and	heritage	assets.		The	medieval	‘ladder’	street	
pattern	is	evident	in	the	central	core	of	Lichfield.

2.32	 The	masterplan	aims	to	ensure	that	development	proposals	not	only	conserve	but	
enhance	existing	heritage	assets	and	their	wider	setting.		Conservation	is	an	active	
process	of	maintenance	and	managing	change,	utilising	a	flexible	approach.		This	
will	include	the	retention	of	existing	views	towards	the	spires	of	the	cathedral	and	the	
potential	to	introduce	new	vistas.

2.33	 Development	within	the	city	centre	provides	a	unique	opportunity	to	make	a	positive	
contribution	to	Lichfield’s	unique	character	and	distinctiveness.		A	strong	and	
successful	centre	helps	support	the	rest	of	the	city	and	provides	many	people	with	a	
positive	key	impression	of	Lichfield	as	a	place.

OBJECTIVE 1:
A STRONG HISTORIC CORE

2.34	 Lichfield	is	characterised	as	a	“Speciality”	city.		For	Lichfield	to	maximise	its	potential	
and	future-proof	itself,	it	is	necessary	that	the	development	opportunities	identified	in	
the	masterplan	are	appropriate	for	its	speciality	signature.		

2.35	 Lichfield	should	seek	to	attract	demand	for	new	complementary	uses	to	strengthen	the	
existing	vibrant	mix	of	city	centre	uses.		Niche	independent	retailers	and	the	restaurant	
offer	is	what	makes	Lichfield	unique	and	the	masterplan	aims	to	continue	to	support	
this	offer.		The	masterplan	proposes	to	emphasise	a	‘circuit	of	destinations’	within	the	
city	centre	including	cultural,	leisure,	tourism	and	retail	places,	which	themselves	form	
distinct	locations	and	will	encourage	longer	visitor	stays.		

2.36	 The	masterplan	identifies	opportunities	to	provide	for	new	housing	to	provide	greater	
housing	diversity	in	the	city	centre	and	to	ensure	that	it	is	populated	at	all	times	of	the	
day	and	into	the	evening.	

OBJECTIVE 2: 
COMPLEMENTARY & SUPPORTING USES

15LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 27



OBJECTIVE 3: 
WELCOMING GATEWAYS
2.37	 The	experience	of	arriving	in	Lichfield	is	crucial	in	helping	to	shape	people’s	perception	

of	the	city	centre.	The	masterplan	aims	to	ensure	that	the	transition	from	being	a	
passenger	to	a	pedestrian	is	efficient,	safe	and	welcoming.		

2.38	 Parts	of	the	city	centre	can	feel	disjointed	due	to	poor	legibility	and	signage,	particularly	
between	Lichfield	City	Train	Station,	Lichfield	Bus	Station	and	the	Cathedral.		In	seeking	
to	promote	the	city	as	a	tourist	destination,	it	will	become	increasingly	important	to	
provide	clear,	legible	signage	and	wayfinding	across	the	city	centre.

2.39	 The	masterplan	aims	to	make	the	city	centre	easy	to	understand,	through	public	realm	
improvements	such	as	consistent	signage	so	that	visitors	can	easily	identify	the	best	
route	to	reach	the	city’s	key	attractions.		The	masterplan	will	encourage	key	sites	to	
accommodate	clear	routes,	to	help	direct	pedestrians	and	cyclists	around	the	city.	

2.40	 The	masterplan	proposes	new	land	uses,	enhanced	streets	and	spaces	and	better	
connectivity,	particularly	for	sustainable	modes	of	transport,	providing	opportunities	
to	significantly	improve	the	first	impression	of	the	city.		Enhancements	to	bus	facilities	
as	part	of	a	wider	transport	hub,	to	include	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	will	be	achieved	
through	targeted	development	opportunities	and	public	realm	interventions	identified	
within	the	masterplan.		

OBJECTIVE 4: 
VIBRANT STREETS & SPACES

2.41	 The	public	realm	comprises	the	streets,	footpaths,	squares,	green	spaces,	parks	
and	other	external	urban	spaces	that	are	publicly	accessible.		The	quality	of	the	
public	realm	should	be	such	that	they	feel	safe	and	pleasant	to	use	by	all	types	of	
users,	including	children,	older	people	and	those	with	mobility	issues.		Public	realm	
improvements	are	identified	in	the	masterplan	which	will	help	to	enhance	the	quality	
and	character	of	the	public	realm,	equalling	the	high	standards	already	set	in	places	in	
the	city	centre.		

2.42	 Lichfield	city	centre	has	a	variety	of	public	spaces	including	Market	Place,	Beacon	
Park,	Minster	Pool	and	Stowe	Pool	which	are	valued	by	the	existing	community	and	
by	visitors.		The	masterplan	aims	to	protect	these	important	spaces	and	to	extend	
the	provision	of	landscaping	and	civic	spaces	within	the	heart	of	the	city	centre,	to	
encourage	dwell	time.	

2.43	 The	streets	and	spaces	of	the	city	centre	are	as	much	about	the	character	and	
appearance	of	Lichfield	as	they	are	about	access	and	movement.		The	masterplan	
continues	to	support	a	mix	of	different	uses,	set	within	streets	and	spaces	which	offer	a	
safe,	exciting	and	attractive	place	to	spend	time	in.	

2.44	 The	masterplan	aims	to	ensure	that	the	basic	structure	of	the	city	centre	is	effective,	
establishing	development	parcels	capable	of	delivering	a	strong	pattern	of	land	uses	
and	activities.		The	mix	of	uses	are	supported	through	improvements	to	transport	and	
movement	in	and	around	the	city	centre.

2.45	 By	identifying	different	sites	that	can	accommodate	a	range	of	different	land	uses,	
new	housing,	business	and	employment,	as	well	as	tourism	and	leisure	opportunities,	
the	masterplan	helps	support	the	economic	prosperity	of	Lichfield.		In	this	way	it	will	
contribute	towards	making	the	city	centre	a	more	vibrant	and	attractive	place	and	
destination.	

16 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 28



2.46	 The	design,	quality	and	appearance	of	the	public	realm	is	an	important	component	
in	defining	the	character	of	a	place,	in	shaping	people’s	perceptions	of	place	
and	in	linking	together	key	destinations	and	attractions	within	a	city	centre.		The	
masterplan	identifies	public	realm	improvements	to	enhance	connectivity	between	the	
Birmingham	Road	Gateway	and	the	city	centre,	both	visually	and	physically.

2.47	 As	a	compact	city	centre,	the	masterplan	aims	to	improve	pedestrian	and	cycle	routes	
and	wayfinding	to	help	encourage	people	to	walk	and	cycle	and	utilise	public	transport	
services,	rather	than	rely	on	the	private	car,	which	in	turn	would	ease	car	traffic	
congestion.		This	will	contribute	towards	providing	opportunities	for	improving	health	
and	wellbeing,	through	making	it	easier	and	more	attractive	to	walk	or	cycle.	Facilities	
to	encourage	more	cycling	–	wayfinding,	parking	and	storage	–	are	also	addressed	as	
part	of	the	masterplan.	

2.48	 The	masterplan	aims	to	improve	safety	for	pedestrian	users	by	providing	clarity	with	
respect	to	areas	of	the	city	centre	with	pedestrian-priority	and	those	parts	where	
streets	accommodate	both	pedestrian	and	vehicle	movements.		This	will	need	to	be	
balanced	with	the	needs	of	those	requiring	access	to	blue	badge	parking	spaces	and	
to	servicing	areas,	to	ensure	the	city	centre	functions	on	a	practical	level.

OBJECTIVE 5: 
QUALITY ACCESSIBLE ENVIRONMENT

OBJECTIVE 6: 
THE 'GREEN' & SUSTAINABLE CITY
2.49	 Green	infrastructure	(which	includes	open	spaces,	water	bodies	and	landscape	

planting)	provides	many	benefits,	including:	
	Ŋ Improving	people’s	physical	and	mental	health;
	Ŋ Reducing	air	pollution;
	Ŋ Protecting	against	climate	change	to	help	reduce	flood	risk	i.e.	by	utilising	sustainable	
drainage	measures	(Sustainable	urban	Drainage	Systems;	SuDS)	to	manage	storm	water;

	Ŋ Providing	comfort	in	urban	environments	–	for	instance	trees	provide	shade	and	cooling;
	Ŋ Encouraging	active	travel	i.e.	using	a	form	of	travel	such	as	walking,	cycling	and	
accessing	public	transport	which	involves	physical	activity;	and

	Ŋ Providing	opportunities	for	people	to	enjoy	their	leisure	time.

2.50	 The	setting	of	the	city	centre	is	greatly	enhanced	through	the	presence	of	Beacon	Park,	
Minster	and	Stowe	Pools	and	landscaping.		The	masterplan	aims	to	maintain,	enhance	
and	extend,	where	possible,	the	network	of	open	spaces	and	landscaping	within	the	
city	centre	to	provide	benefits	to	residents,	workers	and	visitors.

2.51	 The	masterplan	encourages	the	use	of	exemplary	landscaping	and	the	provision	of	
open	space	and	planting	of	native	vegetation,	together	with	SuDS	including	innovating	
paving	treatments	(e.g.	permeable	paving).		As	well	as	providing	a	drainage	function,	
SuDS	also	contribute	to	amenity	and	enhance	habitat	creation	and	wildlife.

2.52	 Specific	building	design	features	and	construction	measures	can	be	incorporated	
to	reduce	energy	demand.		This	includes	both	passive	measures	such	as	providing	
passive	shading	and	south-facing	windows,	as	well	as	active	measures	such	as	
highly	efficient	boilers	or	high	efficiency	lighting.		New	development	will	be	required	
to	meet	the	mandatory	requirements	of	sustainable	development	set	out	in	Building	
Regulations	(or	equivalent	future	standard).

2.53	 The	masterplan	aims	to	encourage	the	use	of	sustainable	forms	of	travel,	by	improving	
connectivity	to	bus	and	rail	links	and	enhancing	pedestrian	connectivity	throughout	the	
city	centre.			

17LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 29



Masterplan Quarters – Ensuring 
a Comprehensive Approach

2.54	 The	masterplan	proposes	a	comprehensive	and	
coordinated	approach	to	maximise	the	potential	of	
the	city	centre.	This	will	facilitate	the	delivery	of	new	
development	and	public	realm	improvements	which	
are	designed	to	complement	and	connect	with	one	
another.		

2.55	 This	approach	enables	growth	to	be	planned	
in	a	sustainable	way.		This	is	particularly	the	
case	when	considering	city-wide	strategies	and	
improvements,	such	as	public	transport	facilities,	
highway	improvements	and	car	parking	provision.		
In	so	doing,	the	masterplan	will	give	certainty	to	the	
development	industry	over	what	is	expected	within	
the	city	centre,	helping	to	deliver	the	aspirations	for	
Lichfield	articulated	through	local	policy.	

2.56	 In	order	to	achieve	a	comprehensive	approach,	
the	masterplan	has	identified	four	distinct	but	
overlapping	city	Quarters.	The	four	city	Quarters	
comprise	the	Cathedral	Quarter,	Market	Quarter,	
Business	and	Learning	Quarter,	and	the	Southern	
Gateway	Quarter.	

2.57	 The	Quarters	are	defined,	in	part,	by	the	established	
character	of	different	parts	of	the	city	centre,	its	
historic	development,	and	by	the	prevailing	mix	of	
uses	present.	They	provide	a	means	of	targeting	
investment	ensuring	that	development	opportunities	
and	public	realm	priorities	contribute	to	helping	
further	enhance	the	character	of	each	quarter	but	
also	the	attractiveness	and	appeal	of	the	wider	city	
centre.	

2.58	 The	Quarters	are	connected	by	key	streets	and	
spaces	across	the	city	centre.		As	well	as	performing	
a	practical	access	function	the	streets	and	spaces	
also	lend	distinction	to	different	locations	in	the	
city	centre,	helping	people	to	find	their	way	around	
Lichfield.		They	include	the	city’s	important	green	
parks	and	spaces	which	are	such	an	important	part	
of	the	identity	of	Lichfield,	specifically	the	Minster	
Pool,	Stowe	Pool,	and	Beacon	Park.		Together	the	
Quarters,	streets	and	spaces	help	define	the	city	
centre,	are	deeply	embedded	in	its	history	and	
identity,	and	provide	a	robust	framework	for	making	
decisions	about	its	future.	

18 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 30



19LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 31



CATHEDRAL QUARTER

2.59	 This	Character	Area	is	focused	on	the	area	around	the	Cathedral,	which	also	includes	
Lichfield	Cathedral	School,	Erasmus	Darwin	House	and	residential	dwellings	located	on	The	
Close.		This	Character	Area	contains	a	rich	mix	of	historic	assets,	most	notably	the	Grade	I	
listed	cathedral.		

2.60	 An	attractive	backdrop	is	afforded	to	this	area	by	the	green	‘lung’	of	Minster	Pool,	Beacon	
Park	and	Stowe	Pool,	which	connects	the	cathedral	with	the	Market	Quarter.		This	setting	is	
fitting	of	the	cathedral’s	prominence	and	heritage	status	and	its	visibility	provides	an	iconic	
landmark	across	the	city.	

2.61	 The	cathedral	area	should	be	maintained	and	preserved	whilst	allowing	for	environmental	
enhancements	including	enhanced	pedestrian	routes	and	directional	signage	to	further	
strengthen	its	important	role	within	the	city.	

20 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 32



MARKET QUARTER 

2.62	 Representing	a	significant	part	of	the	city	centre	in	terms	of	its	role	and	function,	the	Market	Quarter	is	
used	by	a	range	of	visitors,	businesses	and	residents.		The	Market	Quarter	encompasses	Bird	Street,	
Market	Street,	Conduit	Street	and	Bore	Street.

2.63	 This	Quarter	contains	a	mix	of	retail,	commercial,	café	and	restaurant	uses	as	well	as	the	Market	
Place	which	greatly	contribute	to	the	city’s	vibrancy.		The	niche	and	artisan	shops,	restaurants	and	
cafés	provide	a	unique	offer	to	attract	visitors	and	this	should	be	maintained	and	strengthened	with	
complementary	new	uses.				

2.64	 Within	the	heart	of	the	city	there	are	many	important	buildings	including	the	Guildhall	(Grade	II)	
and	St	Mary’s	Church	(Grade	II*)	which	contribute	to	its’	special	historic	character.		The	medieval	
‘ ladder’	street	pattern	is	evident	in	this	central	core,	providing	important	pedestrian	routes.		Any	new	
development	should	seek	to	respond	to	the	setting	and	built	form	character	of	the	city.	

2.65	 There	is	an	opportunity	to	improve	the	environmental	quality	and	attractiveness	of	streets	and	spaces	
within	the	Market	quarter,	including	through	a	consistently	high	quality	of	street	furniture	and	paving.		
Interventions	should	also	be	made	to	enhance	pedestrian	comfort	and	safety	by	redressing	the	
balance	between	the	car	and	pedestrian.

21LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 33



BUSINESS & LEARNING QUARTER 

2.66	 The	business	and	learning	functions	are	focussed	to	the	south-western	part	of	the	city.		This	
encompasses	South	Staffordshire	College/	Staffordshire	University,	Queen’s	Croft	High	
School	and	the	Police	Mutual	Offices,	which	is	a	major	employer	in	the	city.

2.67	 There	are	existing	linkages	with	the	College/	University	and	Lichfield,	due	to	their	
proximity	to	the	central	core	of	Lichfield.		There	is	the	potential	to	develop	these	linkages,	
to	accommodate	students,	graduates	and	relevant	businesses	from	the	University	and	
College.

2.68	 Whilst	this	area	predominantly	focuses	on	business	and	learning,	parts	of	this	Quarter	are	also	
residential	in	character,	with	recent	high-quality	housing	schemes	at	Chapter	House	on	Monks	
Close	and	St	John’s	Almshouses	on	the	Birmingham	Road.

2.69	 The	business	and	learning	uses	within	this	Quarter	should	be	maintained,	and	opportunities	
pursued	to	rationalise	the	area	of	car	parking	at	University	West	Car	Park	to	make	more	efficient	
use	of	this	land	for	new	uses,	alongside	the	car	parking	area.

22 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 34



SOUTHERN GATEWAY QUARTER 

2.70	 The	Southern	Gateway	Quarter	is	focussed	around	Lichfield	City	Train	Station,	Lichfield	Bus	Station	and	the	
Birmingham	Road	which	provides	the	southern	approach	to	Lichfield.		This	is	a	key	entrance	into	the	city	for	
visitors	arriving	by	train,	bus	and	car.		It	is	important	that	the	transition	from	being	a	driver	or	passenger	to	a	
pedestrian	shapes	a	positive	first	impression	of	Lichfield.

2.71	 Currently,	this	key	approach	does	not	signal	arrival	into	the	city	centre,	with	poor	public	realm	and	evident	
areas	of	disconnect	for	pedestrians	travelling	between	this	Area	and	the	Market	Quarter.		This	greatly	
impacts	upon	the	visitor	arrival	experience.	

2.72	 The	Birmingham	Road	provides	a	significant	barrier	to	pedestrian	movement	into	the	city	which	needs	to	
be	addressed.		The	quality	of	the	Bus	Station	and	car	parks	also	require	improvement.		A	scheme	of	public	
realm	improvements	around	Birmingham	Road	would	be	significant	in	revitalising	the	Gateway	and	linking	in	
with	the	city	centre.

2.73	 The	availability	of	the	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	site	for	future	development	provides	the	opportunity	to	
‘stitch’	together	pedestrian	links	between	Lichfield	City	Train	Station,	the	heart	of	the	City	and	the	cathedral.

2.74	 This	Quarter	contains	the	heritage	buildings	of	the	Hospital	of	St	John	(Grade	I)	and	part	of	Lichfield	
District	Council’s	offices,	including	the	Council	Chamber	(Grade	II).		The	spires	of	the	Cathedral	and	St	
Mary’s	Church	are	visible	from	the	Birmingham	Road	and	these	important	vistas	should	be	maintained	and	
enhanced	through	the	configuration	of	any	new	uses	on	the	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	site.	

23LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 35



24 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 36



DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES:

BIRMINGHAM ROAD GATEWAY

DISTRICT COUNCIL HOUSE

BIRD STREET COURTYARD

UNIVERSITY WEST CAR PARK4
3
2
1

PUBLIC REALM PRIORITIES:

BIRMINGHAM ROAD CORRIDOR

LICHFIELD TRANSPORT HUB

BIRD STREET WALK

CIRCULAR MINSTER POOL WALK

PEDESTRIAN PRIORITY STREETS

PEDESTRIAN WALKWAYS & LINKAGES

SIGNAGE & WAYFINDING

D
C
B
A

E
F
G

25LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 37



Masterplan Development Opportunities 
and Public Realm Priorities 

2.75	 The	masterplan	has	identified	a	number	of	Development	Opportunities	and	Public	Realm	
Priorities	which	collectively	will	deliver	an	enhanced	city	centre	offer	for	people	living,	
working	and	visiting	Lichfield.		The	Development	Opportunities	will	also	contribute	to	
delivering	the	Public	Realm	Priorities	that	are	also	identified	within	the	masterplan.

2.76	 The	Development	Opportunities	have	been	identified	having	regard	to	known	sites	that	
are	available	and	following	discussions	between	the	Council	and	other	stakeholders.		The	
masterplan	establishes	a	strong	framework	within	which	development	proposals	can	be	
shaped	and	ultimately	assessed	by	the	Council.		The	Development	Opportunities	and	
Public	Realm	Priorities	are	explained	in	more	detail	in	Sections	3	and	4	of	this	report.

2.77	 It	is	important	to	note	that	should	other	sites	come	forward	within	the	city	centre	that	have	
not	at	this	stage	been	identified,	they	will	be	assessed	having	regard	to	the	contribution	
they	make	to	the	overall	city	centre	masterplan.	The	Development	Opportunities	comprise:	

BIRMINGHAM	
ROAD	GATEWAY

A	mix	of	new	uses	including	
a	Bus	Station,	alongside	

public	realm	enhancements	to	
create	a	revitalised	southern	

gateway	to	Lichfield.

BIRD	STREET	
COURTYARD

A	mix	of	new	housing	and	
commercial	opportunities	(a	

café/bar/restaurant/community	
uses)	to	animate	Minster	Pool	
Walk	with	car	parking	spaces	
continuing	to	be	provided	
to	the	southern	part	of	the	
Bird	Street	Car	Park	site.

26 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 38



2.78	 Seven	Public	Realm	Priorities	have	also	been	
identified	to	deliver	wider	improvements	to	patterns	
of	movement	and	quality	of	place.	They	comprise:	

DISTRICT	COUNCIL	
HOUSE

Providing	enhancements	to	
the	District	Council	House	
to	consolidate	the	existing	
office	areas	to	provide	a	
more	efficient	work	space	

and	to	provide	for	additional	
commercial/community	uses.

UNIVERSITY	WEST	
CAR	PARK

A	rationalised	area	of	car	parking	
to	accommodate	parking	for	
coaches	and	new	small-scale	
offices,	suitable	for	SMEs	
and	start-up	businesses.	

CIRCULAR	MINSTER	POOL	WALK
Providing	the	pedestrian	link	through	the	green	
‘lung’	of	the	City,	a	new	footpath	to	the	north	
of	Minster	Pool	will	facilitate	a	circular	walk.	

PEDESTRIAN	PRIORITY	STREETS
Interventions	within	the	pedestrianised	
areas	of	the	Market	Quarter	will	
improve	safety	for	pedestrian	users.

SIGNAGE	&	WAYFINDING
Clear	and	consistent	signage	and	wayfinding	
across	the	city	centre	will	make	it	easier	for	
people	to	navigate	their	way	around	Lichfield.

PEDESTRIAN	WALKWAYS	
&	LINKAGES
There	are	barriers	to	pedestrian	movement	
within	certain	areas	of	the	city	which	would	
benefit	from	enhancements	to	the	public	realm.

LICHFIELD	TRANSPORT	HUB
The	public	transport	facilities	will	be	important	in	
presenting	a	first	impression	of	Lichfield,	as	people	
transition	from	being	a	passenger	to	a	pedestrian.

BIRD	STREET	WALK
Bird	Street	Walk	forms	an	important	
pedestrian	connection	between	Bird	Street	
and	Market	Street	where	environmental	
enhancements	should	be	focused.	

BIRMINGHAM	ROAD	CORRIDOR
The	Birmingham	Road	forms	a	key	
element	of	the	Gateway,	signalling	the	
southern	entrance	to	the	City	centre.

A

B

C

D

E

G

F

27LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 39



Masterplan Transition Areas 

2.79	 In	addition	to	the	Development	Opportunities	and	Public	Realm	Priorities	
that	have	been	identified	as	part	of	the	masterplan,	there	are	also	three	
Transition	Areas.		These	are	located	at	the	periphery	of	the	masterplan	
area	and	although	they	do	not	present	specific	proposals	never-the-less	
they	are	important	in	providing	a	future	opportunity	for	enhancement.	

2.80	 The	three	Transition	Areas	comprise:	City	centre	East ;	City	Centre	
West ;	and	City	Centre	South .	Where	proposals	come	forward	for	each,	
they	will	be	assessed	against	the	opportunities	set	out	below	as	well	as	
the	masterplan	objectives	and	design	principles.	

28 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 40



CITY CENTRE EAST
2.81	 The	City	Centre	East	Transition	Area	is	located	on	the	eastern	edge	of	the	

masterplan	area	and	runs	between	Birmingham	Road	to	the	south	and	
Rectory	Lane	and	Cross	Keys	to	the	north.	The	area	is	characterised	by	a	mix	
of	commercial	and	residential	premises	and	includes	extensive	areas	of	public	
and	private	car	parking.		Pedestrian	routes,	particularly	giving	access	to	Tesco	
to	the	east,	as	well	as	the	extensive	park	around	Stowe	Pool,	cross	the	site.		
Key	opportunities	could	include:	
	Ŋ Modest	redevelopment	and	infilling	to	establish	a	finer	grained	pattern	of	
development	with	greater	overlooking	of	adjoining	streets	and	spaces.	

	Ŋ Establishing	a	better	interface	between	the	parkland	around	Stowe	Pool	and	
the	rest	of	the	city	centre	–	this	could	include	better	signage	and	wayfinding,	
opportunities	for	additional	events	space	as	part	of	the	parkland,	and	
temporary	camping	facilities	to	accommodate	visitors	at	one	of	Lichfield’s	
many	festivals.	

	Ŋ Additional	tree	planting	along	the	edge	of	the	Stowe	Pool	parkland	to	enhance	
visual	amenity	and	improved	biodiversity	in	the	city	centre.	

CITY CENTRE WEST 
2.82	 The	City	Centre	West	Transition	Area	is	located	to	the	north	west	of	the	city	

centre	masterplan	area.		It	is	located	in	the	area	between	Swan	Road	and	
Shaw	Lane.		The	area	is	characterised	primarily	by	the	edge	of	Beacon	Park,	
as	well	as	various	properties	access	from	Beacon	Street.	Key	opportunities	
should	include:	
	Ŋ Enhanced	wayfinding	and	signage	to	Beacon	Park	more	effectively	linking	it	to	
the	proposed	circular	route	around	Minster	Pool	and	Stowe	Pool	beyond.	

	Ŋ Select	infill	and	redevelopment	opportunities	on	brownfield	sites	designed	to	
overlook	the	park	and	establish	an	attractive	edge.		

CITY CENTRE SOUTH 
2.83	 The	City	Centre	South	Transition	Area	is	focused	around	Station	Road.		This	

mixed-use	edge	of	city	location	provides	parking,	commercial	space,	and	
residential	uses	and	is	located	within	close	proximity	to	the	Train	Station.		
Should	the	opportunity	arise,	the	area	could	be	more	intensively	developed	to	
provide	new	business	premises	or	residential	development,	in	a	sustainable	
and	accessible	location.		

29LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 41



Masterplan Design Principles – Ensuring Design Quality

2.84	 The	masterplan	is	underpinned	by	design	principles	to	ensure	that	development	in	the	masterplan	area	
is	of	a	consistently	high	quality,	building	on	the	guidance	contained	in	the	National	Design	Guide	and	the	
Lichfield	Sustainable	Design	Supplementary	Planning	Document	(SPD).		These	principles	build	upon	the	
masterplan	objectives	to	help	guide	the	design	process	of	all	new	development	in	Lichfield	city	centre.

ONE. ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN QUALITY

2.85	 Lichfield	is	a	historic	city	with	a	number	of	
heritage	assets	which	should	be	preserved	
and	enhanced.		New	development	should	be	
sympathetic	to	the	historic	character	of	the	city	
and	local	architectural	influences,	including	the	
many	listed	buildings	across	the	city.		

2.86	 High-quality	contemporary	architecture	can	
contribute	to	the	attractiveness	and	character	
of	Lichfield.		This	is	particularly	true	where	
contemporary	design	is	of	a	scale,	massing	and	
height	that	is	appropriate	to	its	context.		

2.87	 The	ground	floor	of	new	buildings	should	seek	
to	enliven	adjoining	streets	and	spaces	through	
the	positioning	of	doors	and	windows.		‘Active’	
ground	floor	uses	such	as	spill-out	café	space	
and	public	uses	can	help	to	achieve	this	as	
well	as	the	use	of	balconies	on	upper	floors.		
This	will	be	particularly	important	along	the	
Birmingham	Road,	St	John	Street	and	Frog	
Lane.		This	provides	opportunities	for	the	
street	to	be	overlooked	by	people	in	adjacent	
buildings,	thus	increasing	passive	surveillance	
within	the	city	centre,	to	improve	safety.

2.88	 An	interesting	and	dynamic	roofscape	can	add	
visual	interest.	Ventilation	arrangements,	air	
conditioning,	lighting,	and	servicing	equipment	

must	be	carefully	designed	and	integrated	into	
the	overall	structure	of	buildings	and	should	be	
masked	from	public	view	points,	particularly	
onward	vistas	of	the	cathedral.

2.89	 Landmark	buildings	can	help	signal	important	
locations	in	the	city	centre,	such	as	the	corners	
of	junctions	between	main	streets,	or	key	
public	spaces.		They	also	emphasise	the	role	or	
status	that	a	particular	building	has	within	the	
city.	Landmark	buildings	are	not	necessarily	
tall	buildings	but	include	those	of	special	
architectural	quality	and	character,	those	that	
have	distinctive	and	memorable	features	(e.g.	
chimneys)	or	house	special	and	unique	uses.		
The	Garrick	Theatre	and	St	Mary’s	Church	are	
both	examples	of	landmarks	in	the	city	centre.

2.90	 The	pattern	of	different	building	heights	and	the	
location	of	landmarks	play	a	significant	role	in	
helping	people	to	intuitively	understand	how	to	
reach	their	desired	destination	from	any	point	
in	the	city	centre.		New	development	must	
reinforce	this	pattern,	adding	to	the	character,	
identity	and	legibility	of	the	city	centre.		The	
masterplan	identifies	locations	where	landmark	
buildings	will	be	appropriate	and	where	
particular	features	and	corners	should	be	
emphasised	through	the	design	of	buildings.

30 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 42



TWO. MATERIALS AND DETAILING

2.91	 A	palette	of	high-quality	materials	will	help	
to	firmly	establish	the	character	and	identity	
of	the	masterplan	area,	both	in	respect	of	the	
public	realm	and	the	built	form	of	buildings	
and	structures.		High	quality	materials	that	
are	unique	to	the	city	centre,	or	emphasise	a	
particular	location	within	it,	must	be	utilised.		
This	will	help	to	build	upon	the	existing	
character	of	Lichfield.

2.92	 In	the	masterplan	area,	a	restrained	palette	
of	materials	should	be	specified,	including	
red	brick	and	clay	tiles	as	used	at	the	Garrick	
Theatre	and	the	housing	schemes	at	Chapter	
House	on	Monks	Close	and	St	John’s	
Almshouses	on	the	Birmingham	Road.		The	
image	of	place	will	be	reinforced	by	built	form,	
construction	materials,	decorative	detailing,	
such	as	balconies,	public	art	and	even	basic	

features	such	as	windows	and	doorways.		
These	features	will	also	assist	in	making	the	
area	legible,	familiar	and	distinctive.	Attention	
must	be	paid	to	the	design	and	detailing	of	new	
development.

2.93	 Bin	and	recycling	storage	facilities	are	
important	details	that	are	often	overlooked	
in	new	development	resulting	in	impractical	
and	unsightly	bin	and	recycling	storage	
enclosures.		Particular	regard	must	be	given	to	
design	of	these	features	with	storage	provided	
within	the	building	envelope,	or	as	an	integral	
structure	designed	and	specified	as	part	of	
the	building.		Adequate	design	and	provision	
for	commercial	premises	and	apartments	will	
be	a	particularly	important	consideration.		
All	bin	and	recycling	storage	areas	must	be	
accessible	to	refuse	vehicles.

	

31LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 43



THREE. ATTRACTIVE & USABLE PUBLIC REALM

2.94	 A	clutter	of	lampposts,	servicing	boxes,	bollards	
and	signage	undermines	the	quality	and	
attractiveness	of	the	public	realm	and	can	also	
act	as	a	confusing	barrier	to	people	wishing	
to	access	the	city	centre.		Design	simplicity	
is	therefore	an	important	consideration.		The	
removal	of	unnecessary	elements	and	the	
co-ordination	of	signage	and	street	furniture	
is	an	important	aim.		This	must	include	a	co-
ordinated	approach	to	signage	and	wayfinding	
across	the	city	centre.

2.95	 All	too	often	pedestrians	are	forced	to	cross	
streets	and	public	spaces	via	the	least	direct	
route.		A	basic	principle	in	the	design	and	layout	
of	all	crossings	and	public	spaces	should	be	
following	the	lines	that	people	want	to	take,	
not	forcing	alternatives	that	then	have	to	be	
guarded	using	safety	barriers	which	contribute	
to	street	clutter.		This	will	be	particularly	
important	for	pedestrian	cross-routes	around	
the	city	centre	linking	together	key	parts	of	the	
city,	including	crossing	the	Birmingham	Road,	
St	John	Street	and	Swan	Road.	

2.96	 Tree	planting	complements	the	public	realm	by	
providing	visual	delight,	increased	biodiversity,	
and	shade.		At	present	tree	planting	is	most	
prominent	around	Minster	Pool	and	the	

cathedral.		Further	opportunities	for	tree	
planting	in	these	and	other	locations	will	be	
encouraged	through	the	masterplan	to	help	
emphasise	the	identity	of	different	parts	of	
the	city	centre.		Consideration	must	be	given	
to	future	maintenance,	overshadowing	and	
leaf	drop	in	selecting	locations	and	species.	
Opportunities	for	other	types	of	planting	will	
also	be	encouraged	in	the	city	centre.

2.97	 Robust,	low	maintenance	and	timeless	design	
must	be	a	key	component	of	any	public	realm	
works.		A	co-ordinated	but	limited	palette	
of	surface	materials,	such	as	stone	and	
brick	paviours,	as	evident	in	Conduit	Street,	
Tamworth	Street,	Breadmarket	Street	and	parts	
of	Bore	Street	and	Market	Street,	will	provide	a	
strong	setting	for	development.		This	will	help	
to	give	a	unified	appearance	to	the	city	centre.		

2.98	 The	specification	of	street	furniture	components	
such	as	lamp	stands,	bus	shelters,	litter	bins	
and	seating,	must	also	add	to	the	overall	
identity,	quality	and	character	of	the	city	centre.	
Consideration	must	be	given	to	long	term	
maintenance	in	the	specification	of	materials	
and	street	furniture,	as	well	as	being	robust	
enough	to	accommodate	different	requirements	
to	enliven	the	city	centre	e.g.	banners,	
Christmas	lights	and	decorative	planting.

32 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 44



FOUR. DESIGNING FOR HEALTH

2.99	 New	development	within	the	masterplan	area	
should	seek	to	promote	an	active	and	healthy	
city	centre.		Lichfield	is	a	compact	city	centre	
with	all	destinations	within	a	short	walk	of	each	
other,	which	provides	opportunities	to	promote	
walking	and	cycling	and	use	of	public	transport.		

2.100	Active	travel	brings	a	number	of	health	and	
wellbeing	benefits,	including	physical	activity,	
improved	air	quality	and	stress	alleviation.		Safe	
and	accessible	walking	and	cycling	routes	
should	be	provided	within	new	developments,	
along	desire	lines	and	providing	direct	
connectivity	with	key	destinations.		These	
routes	should	be	designed	to	be	overlooked	by	
buildings,	well-lit	and	well-marked	to	encourage	
people	to	walk	and	cycle.		Pedestrian	and	
cycle	links	between	the	Train	Station,	the	City	
Core	and	the	Cathedral	require	improvement	
to	maximise	the	opportunities	of	the	compact	
form	of	Lichfield,	as	identified	through	the	
Public	Realm	Priorities.		

2.101	 The	co-location	of	public,	community	and	
leisure	facilities	within	Lichfield	can	help	
to	facilitate	ease	of	access	for	all	people.		
Opportunities	to	explore	the	potential	to	co-
locate	facilities	should	be	utilised,	particularly	
in	bringing	forward	new	development	at	the	
Birmingham	Road	Gateway.		

2.102	Opportunities	to	provide	new	areas	of	public	
space	should	be	developed,	as	set	out	in	
the	Public	Realm	Priorities.		Streets	and	
public	spaces	can	help	to	boost	the	sense	of	
community	and	civic	pride,	when	designed	
to	encourage	social	and	physical	activity.		
Landscaping	and	public	spaces	can	also	
offer	areas	for	relaxation	and	contact	with	
nature	which	can	improve	mental	health	and	
wellbeing.	

2.103	Further	guidance	on	how	Lichfield	can	be	
designed	for	health	can	be	found	in	the	
following	guidance	documents:	
	Ŋ ‘Putting	Health	into	Place’	by	NHS	England	
(2019);	and

	Ŋ ‘Active	Design’	by	Sport	England	(2015).	

33LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 45



34 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 46



35LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 47



03
DEVELOPMENT 
OPPORTUNITIES

36 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 48



3.1	 This	section	of	the	masterplan	provides	guidance	on	the	four	key	Development	
Opportunities	that	have	been	identified	within	the	city	centre.	In	describing	the	
Development	Opportunities,	reference	is	made	to	the	following:

	 Existing	Uses:	this	summarises	the	existing	land	uses	found	on	the	site.

	 Development	Aspirations:	this	sets	out	the	rationale,	form	and	type	of	
development	that	could	be	brought	forward	on	the	site	and	provides	an	indication	of	
the	potential	quantum	of	different	uses	that	may	be	accommodated	on	each	site.

	 Key	Design	and	Development	Considerations:	this	details	the	important	
elements	of	the	design	and	development	which	require	careful	thought	to	ensure	
new	uses	can	be	accommodated	sensitively,	in	response	to	the	historic	city	centre	
context.

	Ŋ Mix	of	Uses:	indicates	the	mix	of	different	city	centre	uses	that	could	be	
accommodated	flexibly	on	the	site.

	Ŋ Access	Points	&	Entrances:	provides	guidance	on	the	main	points	of	
pedestrian	and	vehicular	access	to	the	site.	

	Ŋ Key	Building	Elevations	&	Active	Edges:	sets	out	where	the	most	important	
and	prominent	building	elevations	should	be	located,	and	the	main	active	edges	
which	will	accommodate	principal	entrances,	shop	windows	and	café	and	
restaurant	seating	areas.

	Ŋ Storey	Heights:	guidance	on	the	height	of	buildings	proposed	on	the	site	having	
regard	to	prevailing	heights	in	the	immediate	location,	scale,	height	and	massing	
in	addition	to	having	regard	to	maintaining	views	to	the	spires.

	Ŋ Important	Corners:	important	corners	will	be	emphasised	through	the	design	
of	the	built	form,	through	either	height	or	other	detailing.	They	will	typically	be	
located	on	prominent	junctions	close	to	busy	streets	and	pedestrian	routes,	
giving	prominence	to	important	places.

	Ŋ Park ing	&	Servicing:	indicates	where	and	how	parking	provision	should	be	
made,	where	it	is	accessed	from,	and	how	the	site	is	serviced,	for	instance	to	
allow	for	deliveries.

	 Implementation	Issues:	sets	out	known	relevant	issues	for	bringing	the	site	
forward	for	development,	for	example	existing	site	features	to	be	retained.	These	are	
also	included	in	the	Delivery	Strategy	in	section	5.

	

37LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 49



1. BIRMINGHAM 
ROAD GATEWAY
EXISTING USES

3.2	 Land	adjacent	to	Birmingham	Road	comprises	
of	several	sites,	including:
	Ŋ the	former	police	station
	Ŋ the	bus	station	and	associated	car	parking	
and	coach	drop	off/	pick-up/	parking	area

	Ŋ the	multi-storey	car	park
	Ŋ the	former	Tempest	Ford	garage	and	
showroom

	Ŋ the	area	in	front	of	Lichfield	City	Train	
Station,	including	the	taxi	rank	and	area	of	
car	parking.	

3.3	 The	Birmingham	Road	multi-storey	car	park	
provides	322	short-stay	parking	spaces	with	
an	additional	10	spaces	for	blue	badge	holders	
and	12	compact	vehicle	bays.		The	parking	
area	within	the	Bus	Station	provides	for	61	
spaces	with	an	additional	2	spaces	for	blue	
badge	holders.		The	surface	car	parking	off	
Birmingham	Road	provides	34	parking	spaces	
with	one	additional	space	for	blue	badge	
holders.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

38 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 50



DEVELOPMENT ASPIRATIONS

3.4	 The	Birmingham	Road	site	is	the	most	
significant	development	opportunity	in	the	
city	centre.		It	will	be	reconfigured	to	provide	
a	new	city	centre	quarter,	one	that	enhances	
the	experience	of	arrival	into	the	city	centre	
by	all	modes	of	transport,	and	introduces	a	
new	mix	of	leisure,	residential,	and	commercial	
development	opportunities	to	Lichfield.		A	
new	bus	station,	station	forecourt,	multi-storey	
parking	will	be	provided	alongside	public	realm	
enhancements	to	create	a	revitalised	‘Southern	
Gateway’	for	Lichfield.	

3.5	 The	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	will	provide	a	
mixed-use	development,	with	the	potential	to	
provide	for:

	Ŋ A	new	bus	station	providing	up	to	eight	bays,	
with	‘pavilion’	building	(to	include	public	
toilets	and	bus	service	information,	and	cycle	
parking	and	storage)	and	a	coach	drop-off/	
pick-up	point	providing	up	to	four	spaces.		

	Ŋ A	new	cinema	together	with	other	leisure	
and	restaurant	uses	at	ground	floor.	

	Ŋ An	hotel.	
	Ŋ Small-scale	commercial	business	
space	together	with	a	limited	amount	of	
convenience	retail.

	Ŋ Residential	apartments	and	houses	with	a	
focus	on	providing	affordable	homes	to	meet	
identified	local	need.	

	Ŋ A	replacement	multi-storey	car	park	
accessed	from	Birmingham	Road	providing	
up	to	480	spaces.	

3.6	 Coach	pick-up	and	drop-off	bays	on	Bird	
Street	and	Castle	Dyke	will	be	removed	and	
re-provided	at	the	new	Bus	Station,	to	enhance	
pedestrian	accessibility	and	safety	on	these	
roads.		This	will	help	to	encourage	visitors	to	
walk	through	the	city	from	the	Bus	Station	to	
spend	more	time	in	Lichfield.		The	compact	
form	of	the	city	centre	supports	this,	with	the	
Cathedral	being	only	a	c.	10	minutes’	walk	from	
the	Bus	Station.

3.7	 The	configuration	of	the	built	form	must	
respect	the	setting	and	view	corridors	of	
the	surrounding	Listed	buildings,	including	
the	Grade	I	Listed	Hospital	of	St	John	(and	
associated	Master’s	House	to	its	rear),	the	
Grade	II	Listed	parts	of	the	District	Council	
House	as	well	as	the	wider	setting	of	the	
Grade	I	Listed	Cathedral	and	the	overarching	
Conservation	Area	which	covers	the	majority	
of	the	site.		The	view	corridors	of	these	Listed	
buildings	are	indicated	on	the	Public	Realm	
Strategy	(see	Figure	1	overleaf).		New	buildings	
will	be	required	to	be	of	an	appropriately	high	
quality.

3.8	 The	development	of	the	Birmingham	Road	
Gateway	will	also	contribute	to	delivering	the	
following	Public	Realm	Priorities	identified	
overleaf:

	Ŋ Public	Realm	Priority	A	-	Birmingham	Road	
Corridor

	Ŋ Public	Realm	Priority	B	-	Lichfield	
Transport	Hub

KEY DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS

	
	 Mix	of	Uses:	a	new	bus	station	with	‘pavilion’	

building	and	coach	drop-off/	pick-up	spaces.		
A	replacement	multi-storey	car	park	on	the	
same	site	of	the	existing	multi-storey,	fronted	by	
active	commercial	uses	to	the	ground	floor.

	 A	new	cinema,	hotel	and	a	supporting	café/
restaurant	offer	will	be	located	centrally	within	
the	site.		New	housing	will	provide	a	frontage	to	
Frog	Lane.		Segregated	parking	to	the	rear	will	
be	provided	for	residents	and	hotel	visitors.	

	 On	the	western	edge,	small-scale	offices	with	
apartments	above	will	be	sensitively	designed	
in	response	to	the	Grade	I	Listed	Hospital	of	St	
John.

39LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 51



	 Access	Points	and	Entrances:	vehicular	
access	will	be	retained	from	Birmingham	Road	
to	access	the	Bus	Station,	new	multi-storey	car	
park	and	Station	Road.		

	 A	new	gateway	crossing	will	be	provided	from	
the	new	Station	Square	across	the	Birmingham	
Road	to	provide	a	safe	and	attractive	pedestrian	
route	into	the	Market	Quarter,	overlooked	by	
adjacent	development.

	 Wade	Street	and	Frog	Lane	will	continue	to	
provide	vehicular	access	to	housing	on	those	
streets	and	the	District	Council	House.		It	
will	also	provide	service	access	for	the	hotel,	
cinema	and	leisure	development	as	well	as	new	
residential	development	to	the	western	part	of	
the	site.	

	 Lichfield	City	Train	Station	(and	associated	taxi	
and	visitor	pick-up/drop-off)	will	be	accessible	
via	Station	Road.

	 Key	Building	Elevations	and	Active	Edges:	
new	development	frontages	to	be	provided	to	
the	Birmingham	Road,	Frog	Lane	and	St	John	
Street	(as	well	as	the	central	pedestrianised	
street)	to	activate	these	important	routes.		
Development	will	be	laid	out	to	establish	clear	
blocks	of	development	distinguishing	between	
the	public	fronts	of	buildings	and	more	private	
rear	amenity	areas.

	 Storey	Heights:	proposals	should	have	regard	
to	the	existing	vistas	to	and	from	the	spires	of	
the	Cathedral	and	St	Mary’s	and	the	potential	
for	new	development	to	create	new	vistas,	
including	to	the	Hospital	of	St	John.		

	 Development	located	in	proximity	to	the	
Hospital	of	St	John	should	be	no	more	than	
2	storeys	in	height.		Elsewhere	development	
up	to	4	storeys	is	considered	appropriate	for	
the	majority	of	the	site,	subject	to	vistas	of	the	
spires	being	maintained	and	enhanced.		

	 Important	Corners:	important	corners	and/
or	public	realm	treatment	will	be	provided	to	
emphasise	the	gateway	crossing	point	adjacent	
to	Station	Square,	including	as	part	of	the	
Bus	Station	pavilion	building	and	hotel.		The	
building	on	the	corner	of	Birmingham	Road	/	
St	John	Street	must	be	sensitively	designed	
in	response	to	the	setting	of	the	Hospital	of	St	
John.

	
	 Park ing	and	Servicing:	The	existing	multi-

storey	car	park	will	be	replaced	with	a	new	
multi-storey	car	park	in	its	place	(due	to	
structural	soundness	issues)	accommodating	
some	displaced	parking	from	Bird	Street	Car	
Park	(see	Development	Opportunity	One),	the	
Bus	Station	and	Birmingham	Road.

	 Blue	badge	holder	bays	will	be	provided	
adjacent	to	Station	Square,	as	part	of	the	pick-
up/	drop-off	area.

	 Parking	associated	with	new	housing	on	Frog	
Lane	will	be	provided	to	its	rear.		Parking	for	
guests	of	the	hotel	and	associated	servicing	will	
be	provided	to	the	rear	of	the	hotel.	Parking	for	
the	residential	development	to	the	western	part	
of	the	site	will	be	accessed	from	Frog	Lane	and	
be	provided	within	development	blocks.	

	 An	area	for	servicing	will	be	provided	just	off	
Birmingham	Road,	adjacent	to	Station	Square.

	 Coach	pick-up	and	drop-off	bays	will	be	
provided	at	the	Bus	Station.		Coach	parking	
will	be	re-provided	as	part	of	Development	
Opportunity	Four.

	 The	servicing	access	to	the	Three	Spires	
Shopping	Centre	via	Frog	Lane	will	be	
maintained.

	 Provision	for	cycle	storage,	refuse	and	recycling	
bins	should	be	integrated	into	the	built	
envelope	of	buildings.

40 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 52



IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES

3.9	 The	Birmingham	Road	multi-storey	car	park	
is	regularly	inspected	to	ensure	the	car	park	is	
structurally	sound	to	operate.		Its	demolition	
should	therefore	form	an	early	phase	of	the	
overall	development	strategy	for	land	adjacent	
to	Birmingham	Road.		A	replacement	car	
park	will	need	to	be	provided	for	ahead	of	
Development	Opportunity	Three	due	to	the	
displacement	of	some	parking	provision	from	
Bird	Street	Car	Park.

3.10	 The	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	site	is	owned	
by	Lichfield	District	Council.		Development	is	
likely	to	be	a	medium	term	opportunity.		Prior	to	
bringing	forward	this	development	opportunity,	
discussions	will	need	to	take	place	with	a	
number	of	stakeholders,	including:

	Ŋ Staffordshire	County	Council	as	highways	
authority,	regarding	any	changes	to	the	
highway	proposed	as	part	of	Public	Realm	
Priorities	A	and	B;

	Ŋ Bus	operators	within	Lichfield,	to	minimise	
disruption	to	the	operation	of	bus	services;

	Ŋ The	train	operator	at	Lichfield	City	station,	to	
minimise	disruption	to	the	train	station;

	Ŋ Taxi	operators	within	Lichfield,	to	minimise	
disruption	to	the	accessibility	of	taxi’s;

	Ŋ Lichfield	District	Council,	regarding	their	
wider	land	interests	at	the	District	Council	
House	(Development	Opportunity	Two);

	Ŋ The	Three	Spires	Shopping	Centre,	as	
an	adjacent	operator	and	landowner	and	
leaseholder	of	the	existing	multi-storey	car	
park;	and

	Ŋ The	Garrick	Theatre,	as	an	adjacent	operator.

3.11	 Phasing	is	likely	to	be	in	four	main	parts:	phase	
1	would	provide	the	residential	development	to	
the	western	part	of	the	site	and	fronting	Frog	
Lane.		Phase	2	would	implement	the	cinema,	
leisure	and	hotel	elements,	with	phase	3	
providing	the	redeveloped	car	park.	The	final	
phase	would	be	implementation	of	the	new	Bus	
Station.	

3.12	 Regard	must	be	had	to	the	setting	of	the	
surrounding	Listed	buildings,	including	
the	Grade	I	Listed	Hospital	of	St	John	(and	
associated	Master’s	House	to	its	rear),	the	
Grade	II	Listed	parts	of	the	District	Council	
House	as	well	as	the	wider	setting	of	the	
Grade	I	Listed	Cathedral	and	the	overarching	
Conservation	Area	which	covers	the	majority	of	
the	site.			New	buildings	will	be	required	to	be	of	
an	appropriately	high	quality.

41LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 53



2. DISTRICT COUNCIL 
HOUSE

EXISTING USES

3.13	 The	existing	District	Council	House	
accommodates	the	offices	of	Lichfield	District	
Council	which	are	in	part	Grade	II	Listed.		This	
includes	the	Council	Chambers	which	occupies	
the	former	school	building,	to	the	south	of	the	
site.		A	terrace	of	former	residential	properties	
on	St	John	Street	also	forms	part	of	the	office	
accommodation	with	No39	St	John	Street	also	
being	Grade	II	Listed.	

3.14	 The	District	Council	House	is	formed	of	cellular	
offices	and	meeting	rooms	alongside	the	
historic,	former	residential	layout	of	the	period	
buildings	forming	part	of	the	premises.		The	
office	space	is	currently	underutilised,	dated	
and	difficult	to	navigate.

3.15	 Car	parking	for	Council	staff	is	provided	to	the	
rear	of	the	main	building.

DEVELOPMENT ASPIRATIONS

3.16	 There	is	an	opportunity	to	make	enhancements	
to	the	District	Council	House	to	consolidate	
the	existing	office	areas	to	provide	a	more	
efficient	work	space	and	to	provide	for	
additional	revenue	generating	commercial	and	
community	uses.		The	location	of	the	District	
Council	House	is	significant	in	providing	
an	opportunity	to	better	integrate	with	the	
adjacent	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	site,	
through	complementary	uses.

3.17	 The	main	building	will	continue	to	provide	office	
accommodation	for	Lichfield	District	Council.		
The	western	buildings	located	on	St	John	Street	
could	provide	a	self-contained	serviced	office/	
conference	centre.		The	Council	Chamber	
and	adjacent	buildings	could	be	converted	to	
provide	a	self-contained	wedding/occasion	
venue,	with	the	attractive	courtyard	garden	
providing	outdoor	and	breakout	space.		The	
southern	office	building	could	be	refurbished	
to	provide	a	self-contained	multi-purpose	
community	space,	including	for	use	by	local	
groups	associated	with	the	organisation	of	
festivals.

3.18	 The	configuration	of	the	built	form	must	
respect	the	setting	and	view	corridors	of	the	
surrounding	Grade	II	Listed	buildings	and	the	
wider	setting	of	the	Grade	I	Listed	Cathedral	
and	the	overarching	Conservation	Area	which	
covers	the	majority	of	the	site.		The	view	
corridor	of	the	Cathedral	is	indicated	on	the	
Public	Realm	Strategy	(see	Figure	1	overleaf).		
New	buildings	will	be	required	to	be	of	an	
appropriately	high	quality.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

42 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 54



3.19	 Development	Opportunity	Two	could	
accommodate:

	Ŋ Consolidated	office	space	for	Lichfield	
District	Council	within	existing	building.

	Ŋ Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	on	St	
John	Street	to	provide	a	self-contained	
serviced	office	and	conference	centre.

	Ŋ Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	(including	
the	Council	Chamber)	to	provide	a	self-
contained	wedding/occasion	venue.

	Ŋ Refurbishment	of	the	southern	office	building	
to	a	provide	a	self-contained	commercial	and	
multi-purpose	community	space.

KEY DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS

	Ŋ 	Mix	of	Uses:	the	main	building	will	continue	
to	provide	office	accommodation	for	Lichfield	
District	Council.		The	refurbishment	of	the	
ancillary	buildings	could	provide	a	self-
contained	serviced	office/	conference	centre;	
a	self-contained	wedding/occasion	venue;	
and	a	multi-purpose	community	space.

	Ŋ 	Access	Points	and	Entrances:	vehicular	
and	pedestrian	access	will	be	retained	from	
Frog	Lane.

	Ŋ 	Park ing	and	Servicing:	parking	and	
servicing	will	continue	to	be	accessed	from	
Frog	Lane.		In	the	evening	and	at	weekends	
when	the	wedding/occasion	venue	is	in	
use,	visitors	could	utilise	the	District	Council	
House	car	park.

IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES

3.20	 The	District	Council	House	is	owned	by	
Lichfield	District	Council.		The	District	Council	
House	will	need	to	be	delivered	in	phases	to	
minimise	disruption	to	the	operation	of	the	
Lichfield	District	Council.	Regard	must	be	had	
to	the	setting	of	the	Grade	II	Listed	buildings	
as	well	as	the	overarching	Conservation	Area	
which	covers	the	site.		

43LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 55



3. BIRD STREET 
COURTYARD
EXISTING USES

3.21	 The	Bird	Street	car	park	is	located	to	the	south	
of	Minster	Pool,	to	the	west	of	Dam	Street,	to	
the	north	of	Market	Street	and	east	of	Bird	
Street.	The	existing	vehicular	access	to	the	
car	park	is	provided	from	Bird	Street.		This	
doubles	up	as	the	servicing	access	for	those	
commercial	units	which	back	on	to	the	car	
park.		There	are	also	a	number	of	pedestrian	
routes	which	connect	the	car	park	with	the	
surrounding	streets.	The	Bird	Street	car	park	
provides	169	short-stay	surface-level	parking	
spaces	with	an	additional	8	spaces	for	blue	
badge	holders.

DEVELOPMENT ASPIRATIONS

3.22	 The	site	of	the	Bird	Street	car	park	provides	
an	exciting	opportunity	to	establish	a	fine	
grained,	multi-use	development	at	the	heart	
of	the	Market	Quarter.		Proposals	would	
see	the	retention	of	a	significant	amount	of	
parking	in	one	of	the	most	used	car	parks	in	
the	city	centre,	together	with	retained	service	
access	to	premises	in	Bird	Street	and	Market	
Street.		However,	the	public	realm	would	be	
substantially	enhanced	to	create	a	landscaped	
Courtyard,	with	tree	and	landscape	planting	
introduced	to	break	up	the	expanse	of	hard	
surfacing	and	potentially	to	enable	a	more	
sustainable	surface	water	drainage	system	to	
be	introduced.	

3.23	 A	new	mixed-use	development	to	the	north	of	
the	site	would	front	onto	the	Courtyard.		The	
development	would	provide	a	ground	floor	
of	commercial	uses	that	would	front	onto	
the	courtyard	parking,	as	well	as	providing	
openings	onto	the	Minster	Pool	Walk	and	
Memorial	Gardens.		New	apartments	would	
be	provided	above,	with	elevations	enlivened	
through	the	use	of	full	height	windows	and	
balconies.	The	configuration	of	the	built	form	
must	respect	the	setting	of	surrounding	Listed	
buildings	and	the	overarching	Conservation	
Area	which	covers	the	site,	as	well	as	the	view	
corridor	of	the	Cathedral.	

3.24	 In	the	longer	term,	and	should	the	opportunity	
arise,	the	reconfiguration	or	redevelopment	
of	premises	adjoining	the	Bird	Street	parking	
Courtyard	would	provide	opportunities	for	
further	overlooking	of	the	space	and	to	allow	
for	a	wider	mix	of	complementary	uses	to	be	
introduced	into	the	Market	Quarter.		

3.25	 The	development	interventions	at	Bird	Street	
car	park	will	also	contribute	to	delivering	Public	
Realm	Priority	C	–	Bird	Street	Walk	(see	further	
detail	overleaf).	

3.26	 It	is	anticipated	that	the	potential	development	
capacity	of	the	Bird	Street	Courtyard	could	
provide:	up	to	55	retained	car	parking	spaces;	
Up	to	6	residential	apartments	(with	adjacent	
resident	parking	provided);	and	2	commercial	
units	at	ground	floor	(cafe/bar/restaurant/small	
scale	retail	uses).	

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

44 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 56



KEY DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS

	 Mix	of	Uses:	the	northern	part	of	the	site	
will	introduce	new	residential	housing	with	
commercial	uses	to	the	ground	floor	to	further	
animate	the	Minster	Pool	Walk.		Appropriate	
commercial	uses	could	comprise	the	provision	
of	a	café,	bar,	restaurant	or	community	uses.

	 The	southern	part	of	the	site	will	continue	to	
provide	parking	spaces	and	a	servicing	area	for	
surrounding	commercial	units.

	
	 Access	Points	and	Entrances:	vehicular	

access	will	be	retained	from	Bird	Street,	with	
pedestrian	access	from	Minster	Pool	Walk,	
Dam	Street,	Market	Street	and	Bird	Street.

	
	 Key	Building	Elevations	and	Active	Edges:	

new	development	will	provide	a	frontage	to	
Minster	Pool	Walk.		Proposals	should	reflect	
the	prominent	location	of	this	development	
opportunity	to	the	Cathedral	and	be	sensitively	
designed.

	
	 Storey	Heights:	Proposals	should	have	regard	

to	the	prevailing	height	of	development	in	the	
locality	with	particular	regard	to	vistas	to	and	
from	the	Grade	I	listed	Cathedral.		Up	to	three	
storey	development	is	considered	appropriate,	
subject	to	vistas	of	the	Cathedral	spires	being	
maintained.

	
	 Important	Corners:	a	careful	and	considered	

design	response	should	be	given	to	emphasise	
the	prominent	north-west	corner	of	the	site,	
as	the	principal	access	into	the	site	from	
Bird	Street.		Commercial	units	providing	the	
gateway	route	for	pedestrians	to	Minster	Pool	
Walk	should	be	designed	in	such	a	way	as	to	
enhance	natural	surveillance.

	

	 Park ing	and	Servicing:	parking	and	servicing	
would	continue	to	be	accessed	from	Bird	Street.		
Some	of	the	parking	spaces	will	be	retained	with	
others	re-provided	at	the	new	multi-storey	car	
park	on	Birmingham	Road	(see	Development	
Opportunity	One).	Provision	for	cycle	storage,	
refuse	and	recycling	bins	should	be	integrated	
into	the	built	envelope	of	the	new	buildings.

IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES

3.27	 Bird	Street	car	park	is	owned	by	Lichfield	
District	Council.		Prior	to	bringing	forward	this	
development	opportunity,	discussions	will	need	
to	take	place	with	a	number	of	stakeholders,	
including:

	Ŋ Lichfield	District	Council,	regarding	the	part	
relocation	of	parking	spaces;

	Ŋ Lichfield	City	Council,	as	the	adjacent	
landowner	of	Minster	Pool	Walk;	and

	Ŋ Operators	of	the	adjacent	commercial	units,	
to	minimise	disturbance	to	the	operation	and	
servicing	access	of	these	units.

3.28	 Bird	Street	car	park	has	the	highest	occupancy	
rates	of	all	car	parks	within	the	city	and	is	often	
effectively	full	at	peak	periods.		Development	on	
this	site	will	displace	some	of	the	existing	car	
parking	spaces	to	a	new	multi-storey	car	park	to	
be	provided	as	part	of	Development	Opportunity	
One.	Parking	would	also	be	dispersed	to	other	
locations	in	the	city	centre,	which	are	less	
well	utilised.		This	would	be	allied	to	improved	
signage	and	coordination	of	parking	across	
the	city	centre.		New	development	on	this	site	
will	therefore	need	to	be	co-ordinated	with	
Development	Opportunity	One,	to	minimise	
disruption.	As	a	result,	development	is	likely	to	
be	a	medium	to	longer	opportunity.	

45LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 57



3.29	 Regard	must	be	had	to	the	setting	of	the	
surrounding	Listed	buildings,	including	
the	Grade	I	Listed	Cathedral	as	well	as	the	
overarching	Conservation	Area	which	covers	
the	site.		New	buildings	will	be	required	to	be	of	
an	appropriately	high	quality.	

3.30	 Consideration	will	also	need	to	be	given	to	the	
potential	existence	of	archaeological	remains	
within	the	site	and	the	need	to	ensure	that	any	
potential	archaeological	remains	are	recorded	
and	conserved,	as	appropriate.		

3.31	 Any	new	development	will	be	required	to	
maintain	and	enhance	on-site	drainage.	

46 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 58



47LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 59



4. UNIVERSITY 
WEST CAR PARK
EXISTING USES

3.32	 The	University	West	car	park	is	located	to	the	
south	of	The	Friary,	to	the	west	of	Monks	Close	
and	north	of	South	Staffordshire	College.		The	
existing	vehicular	and	pedestrian	accesses	to	
the	car	park	are	provided	from	Monks	Close.

3.33	 This	car	park	provides	116	long-stay	surface-
level	parking	spaces.

DEVELOPMENT ASPIRATIONS

3.34	 The	site	of	the	University	West	Car	Park	
provides	the	opportunity	to	rationalise	the	area	
of	car	parking	to	accommodate	parking	for	
coaches.		

3.35	 Visitors	forming	part	of	organised	tours	are	
an	increasingly	important	factor	in	the	visitor	
economy	of	Lichfield.		The	limited	number	
of	existing	coach	parking	spaces	in	the	Bus	
Station	is	a	potentially	limiting	factor	to	the	
number	of	coach	trips	visiting	Lichfield.	

3.36	 Coaches	can	be	parked	up	at	the	Bus	Station	
for	a	couple	of	hours	at	a	time	which	provides	
a	poor	gateway	into	the	city,	particularly	for	
those	arriving	from	Lichfield	City	Train	Station.		
The	peripheral	location	of	the	University	West	
car	park,	albeit	only	a	3	minutes’	walk	to	Bore	
Street,	would	be	better	suited	to	accommodate	
coach	parking.

3.37	 The	northern	part	of	the	site	will	introduce	
new	small-scale	offices,	suitable	for	SMEs	and	
start-up	businesses.	Alternatively,	residential	
development	could	come	forward	on	this	part	
of	the	site,	either	associated	with	the	university	
or	for	private	sale	or	rental.		The	central	part	
of	the	site	will	accommodate	coach	parking	
spaces	and	car	parking.

POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY

3.38	 Development	Opportunity	Four	has	potential	
development	capacity	to	accommodate	up	to	
10	coach	spaces,	retain	between	60	and	80	
car	parking	spaces,	and	either	c.	1,800	square	
metres	of	commercial	business	space	aimed	at	
SMEs	and	start-ups,	or	residential	development	
that	could	comprise	apartments	or	town	houses.	

KEY DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS

	 Mix	of	Uses:	the	northern	part	of	the	site	will	
introduce	new	small-scale	offices,	suitable	for	
SMEs	and	start-up	businesses.	

	 The	central	part	of	the	site	will	accommodate	
coach	parking	spaces	and	car	parking.

	
	 Access	Points	and	Entrances:	vehicular	

and	pedestrian	accesses	will	be	retained	from	
Monks	Close.

	 Key	Building	Elevations	and	Active	Edges:	
new	office	development	will	provide	an	
elevation	to	The	Friary/	Monks	Close.

	
	 Storey	Heights:	office	development	to	be	two	

to	three-storeys	in	height.

	 Important	Corners:	office	development	
will	provide	an	important	corner	building	to	
emphasise	the	frontage	to	The	Friary/	Monks	
Close.

	 Park ing	and	Servicing:	the	site	will	
accommodate	coach	parking	as	well	as	public	
car	parking.		The	office	accommodation	will	be	
provided	with	ancillary	parking	provision.	Any	
displaced	car	parking	at	the	University	West	
Car	Park	could	be	accommodated	within	the	
Friary	multi-storey	car	park	which	is	generally	
under-capacity.	

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

48 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 60



IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES

3.39	 The	University	West	Car	Park	is	not	publicly	
owned	and	therefore	this	Development	
Opportunity	is	subject	to	agreement	and	
negotiation	with	the	relevant	landowner.		

3.40	 If	coach	parking	is	not	able	to	be	delivered	at	
the	University	West	Car	Park,	Development	
Opportunity	One	allows	sufficient	flexibility	to	
accommodate	coach	parking	bays	as	part	of	
the	new	Bus	Station.	The	re-location	of	coach	
parking	within	the	city	centre	to	this	site	would	
however	help	to	maximise	the	potential	of	
Development	Opportunity	One	to	deliver	a	mix	
of	uses	at	the	Birmingham	Road	Gateway.	

49LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 61



4.1	 This	section	of	the	masterplan	provides	
guidance	on	the	seven	Public	Realm	
Priorities	that	have	been	identified	
within	the	city	centre,	to	deliver	wider	
improvements	to	patterns	of	movement.		

PUBLIC REALM 
PRIORITIES

04
BEACON 
PARK

50 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 62



VIEW CORRIDOR

TRAIN STATION 
GATEWAY

GREEN CORRIDOR

BUS STATION GATEWAY

VIEW CORRIDOR

THEATRE

ST MARY’S 
CHURCH

LICHFIELD CATHEDRAL

MINSTER POOL

BIRD STREET CAR PARK

KEY PEDESTRIAN LINK

PEDESTRIAN STREET

51LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 63



A. BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
CORRIDOR

4.2	 The	highways	function	(carriageway	and	
associated	vehicles)	of	Birmingham	Road	is	its	
overriding	feature.		This	provides	a	poor	public	
realm	for	pedestrians,	particularly	as	there	are	
limited	pedestrian	crossing	points	that	follow	
the	natural	desire	line	into	the	Market	Quarter.		
There	is	currently	no	controlled	crossing	
for	pedestrians	at	the	junction	between	
Birmingham	Road	and	St	John	Street,	which	
presents	safety	concerns	for	pedestrians.	
This	provides	a	poor	‘entrance’	to	the	City.		
Enhancements	will	be	dependent	upon	the	
completion	of	the	Lichfield	Southern	Bypass	
which	will	free	up	capacity	on	the	Birmingham	
Road	corridor	enabling	works	to	take	place.	

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.3	 The	Birmingham	Road	forms	a	key	element	of	
the	Gateway,	signalling	the	southern	entrance	
to	the	city	centre.		Public	realm	interventions	
should	be	made	to	the	Birmingham	Road	

Corridor,	to	improve	pedestrian	accessibility	
between	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	and	the	
heart	of	the	city	centre:
	Ŋ A	gateway	crossing	for	pedestrians	and	
cyclists	across	Birmingham	Road,	aligned	to	
provide	views	of	St	Mary’s	Church	and	the	
spires	of	the	Cathedral	from	Lichfield	City	
Train	Station.

	Ŋ An	enhanced	visitor	drop-off/pick-up	area,	
with	blue	badge	holder	parking	and	taxi	rank	
directly	adjacent	to	a	new	Station	Square.

	Ŋ A	new	4-way	signal-controlled	crossing	
at	the	egress	of	Station	Road	and	the	Bus	
Station	with	Birmingham	Road,	to	allow	
ease	of	access	and	safe	movement	for	all	
transport	modes	(pedestrians,	cyclists,	
buses,	taxis	&	vehicles).

	Ŋ Potential	new	pedestrian	crossing	points	
at	the	Birmingham	Road/	St	John	Street	
junction.

	Ŋ Enhanced	street	tree	planting	along	
Birmingham	Road.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

52 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 64



B. LICHFIELD 
TRANSPORT HUB

4.4	 This	intervention	is	about	improving	the	layout	
and	facilities	of	the	Bus	Station	and	Train	
Station	to	make	it	a	more	integrated	transport	
hub.		It	also	includes	the	provision	of	improved	
bus	service	information,	such	as	real	time	
passenger	information	to	indicate	at	bus	stops	
when	the	next	bus	is	due.		Closely	associated	
with	this	intervention	is	the	need	to	improve	
the	quality	of	the	connections	across	the	
Birmingham	Road	(Public	Realm	Intervention	
A	–	Birmingham	Road	Corridor).

4.5	 Lichfield	Bus	Station	is	located	on	Birmingham	
Road,	north	of	Lichfield	City	Train	Station.		The	
passenger	experience	at	the	Bus	Station	is	
poor.		It	is	also	difficult	for	buses	to	turn	right	
out	of	the	Bus	Station	into	existing	traffic	flows	
on	the	Birmingham	Road,	as	the	junction	is	not	
signal	controlled.

4.6	 Lichfield	City	Train	Station	provides	a	gateway	
into	Lichfield	by	train,	although	there	is	a	
disconnect	between	the	Station,	the	wider	
public	transport	links	and	the	wider	City.		
The	Station	forecourt	is	dominated	by	the	
carriageway	and	parked	cars,	making	it	difficult	
for	pedestrians	to	safely	navigate	their	way	out	
of	the	Station.		

4.7	 The	pedestrian	route	from	Lichfield	City	Train	
Station	into	the	Market	Quarter	is	not	inviting,	
with	only	one	formal	pedestrian	crossing	across	
the	Birmingham	Road.		The	footpath	narrows	
along	parts	of	the	route,	with	lamp	posts	
often	cluttering	the	route	which	can	act	as	a	
confusing	barrier	to	people	wishing	to	access	
the	city	centre.

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.8	 The	public	transport	facilities	will	be	important	
in	presenting	a	first	impression	of	Lichfield,	as	
people	transition	from	being	a	passenger	to	a	
pedestrian.		Enhancements	to	the	public	realm	
should	be	made	to	enhance	the	experience	of	
arrival	into	Lichfield:
	Ŋ Improved	integration	of	Lichfield	City	Train	
Station	and	the	new	Bus	Station	to	provide	
efficient,	safe	and	convenient	access	for	
pedestrians.

	Ŋ Enhanced	coach	drop-off	and	pick-up	bays	
as	part	of	the	Bus	Station	(with	coach	parking	
provided	as	part	of	Development	Opportunity	
Four).

	Ŋ An	enhanced	public	realm	to	provide	a	clear	
and	welcoming	pedestrian	route	from	Lichfield	
City	Train	Station	into	the	heart	of	the	city	
centre,	overlooked	by	adjacent	development.

	Ŋ A	new	Bus	Station	‘pavilion’	building	located	
directly	opposite	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	
to	encourage	linked	trips	and	usage	of	public	
transport.

	Ŋ A	new	Station	Square	to	provide	an	enhanced	
entrance	to	Lichfield	City	Train	Station	for	
visitors.	

	Ŋ A	new	cycle	hub	at	the	station	to	enhance	the	
facilities	available	to	cyclists.

	Ŋ An	enhanced	taxi	rank,	directly	adjacent	to	
Station	Square.

	Ŋ Potential	shared	cycle	path	along	Birmingham	
Road	adjacent	to	the	Bus	and	Train	Stations	
that	could	be	adapted	to	fit	with	proposals	
currently	being	worked	up	for	cyclists	by	
Staffordshire	County	Council	along	the	
corridor.

4.9	 The	delivery	of	public	realm	improvements	
as	part	of	the	Lichfield	Transport	Hub	is	
inherently	linked	with	those	complementary	
improvements	identified	in	Public	Realm	
Priority	A	(Birmingham	Road	Corridor).

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

53LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 65



Images: Copyright XXXXXXXXX

C. BIRD STREET 
WALK

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET:
4.10	 The	existing	public	footpath	which	connects	

Bird	Street	Car	Park	with	Market	Street	is	
uninviting,	poorly	lit	and	not	overlooked	by	
adjacent	development.		This	contributes	to	
making	this	route	feel	unsafe,	particularly	for	
pedestrians	using	this	route	at	night.

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.11	 Bird	Street	Walk	forms	an	important	pedestrian	
connection	between	Bird	Street	and	Market	
Street.		To	enhance	this	important	pedestrian	
connection,	environmental	enhancements	
should	be	made	to	Bird	Street	Walk:	
	Ŋ Improved	street	lighting	along	its	route.
	Ŋ New	planting	and	rain	garden/Sustainable	
urban	Drainage	Systems	(SuDS)	within	Bird	
Street	Car	Park	(Development	Opportunity	
Three	–	Bird	Street	Courtyard)	and	new	
planting	within	Bird	Street	Walk,	to	create	a	
green	corridor	extending	from	Minster	Pool	
Walk.

	Ŋ Use	of	colour	and	street	furniture	to	enliven	
the	space.

	Ŋ Provision	of	windows	in	adjacent	units	to	
overlook	the	route	to	make	the	space	feel	
safer	for	pedestrians	to	use.

	Ŋ Should	the	opportunity	arise	the	
reconfiguration	or	redevelopment	of	
premises	fronting	Market	Street	could	allow	
for	the	widening	of	Bird	Street	Walk.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

54 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 66



D. CIRCULAR MINSTER 
POOL WALK

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET:
4.12	 Minster	Pool	Walk	to	the	south	of	Minster	Pool	

provides	an	attractive	route	within	the	city	for	
pedestrians	and	cyclists.		This	Walk	connects	
the	two	important	green	spaces	of	Beacon	Park	
and	Stowe	Pool	with	the	city	centre.		

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.13	 To	encourage	longer	stays	and	to	further	
strengthen	this	green	‘lung’	of	linked	green	
spaces,	public	realm	enhancements	should	be	
made	to	Minster	Pool	Walk:	
	Ŋ Provision	of	a	new	footpath/cycle	route	to	
the	north	of	Minster	Pool	Walk,	to	enable	a	
circular	walk	to	be	established.

	Ŋ Additional	street	lighting	to	ensure	the	
extended	route	is	well-lit,	whilst	cognisant	of	
the	wider	setting	of	the	Listed	Cathedral.

	Ŋ Active	development	frontages	(i.e.	a	café,	
a	bar,	a	restaurant	or	community	uses	at	
ground	floor	level)	to	be	created	as	part	of	
Development	Opportunity	Three	(Bird	Street	
Courtyard),	to	enhance	the	feeling	of	safety	
through	activation	of	this	route	(e.g.	spill-out	
café	space	and	windows	overlooking	Minster	
Pool	Walk).

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

55LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 67



E. PEDESTRIAN 
PRIORITY STREETS

4.14	 Within	the	city	centre,	there	are	a	number	
of	“pedestrianised”	streets	including	Bird	
Street,	Dam	Street,	Market	Street,	Bore	Street,	
Breadmarket	Street,	Conduit	Street	and	Baker’s	
Lane.		With	the	exception	of	Baker’s	Lane,	each	
of	these	streets	is	accessible	to	blue	badge	
holders	and	for	loading/servicing	of	commercial	
units	within	the	central	part	of	the	city.		

4.15	 People	walking	around	the	central	part	of	the	
city	are	often	unaware	that	vehicles	can	also	
drive	down	these	streets,	which	can	create	
safety	issues.		There	is	a	need	to	redress	the	
balance	between	the	car	and	pedestrian,	whilst	
balancing	the	needs	of	those	requiring	access	
to	blue	badge	holder	bays	and	to	servicing	
areas.		

4.16	 Data	on	vehicle	flows	shows	that	in	the	peak	
hours	of	10:00-11:00	on	a	Friday	and	08:00-
09:00	on	a	Saturday,	up	to	80	vehicles	and	
68	vehicles	respectively	are	often	travelling	
within	Tamworth	Street,	Dam	Street,	Market	
Street	and	Bore	Street.		Most	of	these	vehicles	
are	circulating	to	find	parking	spaces	on	Bore	
Street,	via	the	one-way	system	which	directs	
traffic	along	Conduit	Street,	Market	Street	and	
Breadmarket	Street	on	to	Bore	Street.

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.17	 To	improve	safety	for	pedestrian	users,	
improvements	should	be	made	to	the	
pedestrianised	parts	of	the	city	centre:
	Ŋ The	re-opening	of	Lower	Bore	Street	to	
permitted	vehicles	(blue	badger	holders,	
permit	holders	and	loading	vehicles).

	Ŋ The	closing	of	Conduit	Street,	Market	Street	
and	Breadmarket	Street	to	through-traffic,	
except	for	permit	holders	and	loading	
vehicles.

	Ŋ Introducing	street	furniture	and	public	
realm	interventions	such	as	timber	bollards	
(potential	use	of	automatic	bollards)	and	
clear	street	signage	to	signal	to	all	users	
those	areas	which	are	pedestrianised	and	
those	which	are	not.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

56 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 68



F.  PEDESTRIAN 
WALKWAYS & 
LINKAGES

4.18	 The	masterplan	advocates	walking	as	the	
priority	means	of	travel,	providing	safe	and	
convenient	access	to	the	city	centre.		This	
means	thinking	about	how	people	walk	from	
the	bus	stops,	train	stations,	taxi	ranks	and	car	
parks	as	well	as	from	their	homes	and	places	of	
business.

4.19	 In	certain	areas	of	the	city,	there	are	barriers	
to	pedestrian	movement,	including	across	
significant	streets.		This	makes	it	difficult	
for	pedestrians	to	easily	and	safely	move	
around	the	city.		In	a	number	of	these	areas,	
the	highways	function	of	the	street	(the	
carriageway	and	associated	vehicles)	have	
priority	over	pedestrians,	and	there	is	no	formal	
crossing	point	to	facilitate	safe	crossing.		

4.20	 In	other	parts	of	the	city,	enhancements	to	
the	urban	environmental	quality,	through	a	
consistent	approach	to	street	design,	furniture,	
landscape	and	street	lighting	would	enhance	
the	attractiveness	of	the	city	centre.

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.21	 Public	realm	interventions	should	be	made	
to	enhance	existing	pedestrian	connections,	
to	encourage	visitors	to	dwell	longer	and	to	
explore	the	wider	assets	of	Lichfield:
	Ŋ Bird	Street	/	Swan	Road	junction	–	to	
make	it	easier	and	safer	to	cross	Swan	Road	
from	Bird	Street,	to	access	Beacon	Park	
and	the	northern	part	of	the	city	centre.		
This	could	include	a	formal	pedestrian	
(zebra)	crossing	and	the	narrowing	of	the	
carriageway	(and	the	enlargement	of	the	
footpath)	to	emphasise	the	pedestrian	
crossing.

	Ŋ Birmingham	Road	/	St	John	Street	
junction	–	the	introduction	of	toucan	
pedestrian	crossings	across	each	arm	of	
the	junction		to	enable	pedestrians	and	
cyclists	to	safely	cross	St	John	Street	and	
Birmingham	Road.	

	Ŋ Bird	Street	/	Bore	Street	/	The	Friary	
junction	–	provision	of	safe	pedestrian	
crossing	points	across	Bird	Street	and	Bore	
Street	where	these	streets	intersect	with	
The	Friary.		This	could	include	formal	zebra/
toucan	pedestrian	crossings.	

	Ŋ Walkways	to	Cross	Keys	and	Stowe	
Pool	via	alleys	–	improvements	to	these	
pedestrian	routes	to	enhance	safety.		This	
could	include	improved	street	lighting	and	
signage	to	direct	pedestrians	to	and	from	the	
city	centre.

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

57LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 69



G. SIGNAGE & 
WAYFINDING

4.22	 The	city	centre	is	widely	recognised	as	being	
poorly	signposted,	with	little	to	no	means	for	
visitors	to	easily	identify	the	best	route	to	reach	
the	city’s	key	attractions.		

4.23	 In	seeking	to	promote	the	city	as	a	tourist	
destination,	it	will	become	increasingly	
important	to	provide	clear,	legible	signage	and	
wayfinding	across	the	city	centre.		

KEY IMPROVEMENTS

4.24	 Clear	and	consistent	signage	and	wayfinding	
should	be	provided	across	the	city	centre	to	
make	it	easier	for	people	to	navigate	their	way	
around	Lichfield:
	Ŋ Provision	of	clear	and	consistent	signage/
wayfinding	across	the	city	centre,	including	
potential	use	of	public	art	or	Totems.	

	Ŋ New	signage	from	the	Lichfield	Transport	
Hub,	to	direct	visitors	to	the	heart	of	the	city	
centre.

	Ŋ New	signage	at	key	intersections	and	public	
spaces	to	signal	key	locations	within	the	city	
centre.

	Ŋ New	signage	at	the	Cathedral,	to	direct	
visitors	to	the	heart	of	the	city	centre	and	the	
Lichfield	Transport	Hub.

4.25	 Despite	Lichfield’s	extensive	programme	of	
festivals	and	events,	many	people	are	not	
currently	aware	of	what	is	on	offer	within	the	
City.		A	wider	Marketing	Strategy	should	be	
developed	to	provide	visitor	information	not	
only	within	Lichfield	through	new	signage,	
but	also	in	raising	Lichfield’s	profile	through	
marketing	and	social	media	to	encourage	
people	to	visit.		

MASTERPLAN OBJECTIVES TO BE MET: 

58 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 70



Introduction

5.1	 The	draft	masterplan	for	Lichfield	has	
identified	a	number	of	projects	and	
proposals	including	new	developments	
and	public	realm	improvements	which	
are	designed	to	complement	and	
connect	with	one	another.		Development	
opportunities	have	been	explored	having	
regard	to	known	sites	that	are	available	
and	following	discussions	between	the	
Council	and	other	stakeholders.	This	
section	sets	out	a	delivery	strategy	for	
those	development	opportunities	and	
public	realm	projects	set	out	in	Sections	
3	and	4	of	this	report.	

DELIVERING THE 
MASTERPLAN

05

59LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 71



Delivery Strategy

5.2	 Implementation	of	the	masterplan	will	take	
place	over	a	number	of	years.	The	success	
of	the	masterplan	will	be	dependent	upon	a	
realistic	and	focussed	approach	to	enabling	
development.	Creating	an	environment	of	
certainty,	by	unlocking	obstacles	to	delivery,	will	
enable	the	market	to	take	commercial	schemes	
forward	with	confidence.

5.3	 The	delivery	strategy	seeks	to	identify	the	
obstacles	to	be	overcome,	and	to	prioritise	
delivery	in	a	way	that	acts	as	a	catalyst.	The	
masterplan	sets	out	a	strong	framework	for	
delivery	of	change	in	the	city	centre.	The	
proposals	concentrate	on	major	areas	of	
change	and	the	supporting	strategies	that	help	
ensure	the	city	centre	functions	as	a	whole.

Viability

5.4	 Masterplan	delivery	is	dependent	on	a	number	of	
elements	working	together	and	viability	is	a	key	
component	in	considering	development	opportunities.	
Viability	will	be	influenced	by	a	number	of	factors	
when	taking	the	opportunity	sites	forward.	These	
factors	may	include,	but	are	not	limited	to:
	Ŋ Residential/commercial	values;
	Ŋ The	pursued	delivery	route	for	securing	affordable	
housing	(see	Appendix	1);

	Ŋ Whether	the	affordable	element	of	the	schemes	
deliver	any	value;

	Ŋ The	potential	for	certain	aspects	of	the	infrastructure	
to	be	value	engineered;	and

	Ŋ The	potential	for	elements	of	a	scheme	to	deliver	an	
income;

5.5	 As	part	of	the	development	of	the	Lichfield	City	
Centre	Masterplan,	the	viability	of	an	appropriate	
mix	of	uses	and	density	of	development	has	been	
assessed.	The	purpose	of	the	process	is	to	ensure	
overall	deliverability	within	a	flexible	framework	
appropriate	to	the	local	property	market,	and	to	seek	
to	maximise	the	potential	for	value	generation.

5.6	 The	sites	have	been	the	subject	of	high-level	
indicative	viability	appraisals.	These	appraisals	seek	
to	identify	whether	the	sites	are	fundamentally	viable	
and	deliverable,	taking	into	account	the	known	costs.	
They	do	not	constitute	formal	valuations	and	should	
not	be	considered	or	relied	upon	as	such.

5.7	 The	appraisals	are	based	on	research	into	
prevailing	residential	and	commercial	sales	values,	
commercial	rental	values	and	yields	and	building	
costs.	The	appraisals	also	include	industry	standard	
development	assumptions	relating	to	standard	costs	
such	as	planning	and	professional	fees,	surveys,	
the	costs	of	finance,	and	assumptions	as	to	the	
appropriate	level	of	developer’s	profit.	

60 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 72



5.8	 The	appraisals	do	not	reflect	the	full	costs	
associated	with	enabling	development	to	
proceed,	as	many	of	these	cannot	be	assessed	
to	any	degree	of	accuracy	at	this	stage.		The	
costs	that	have	been	excluded	are:
	Ŋ any	site	acquisition	costs,	or	(if	required)	
compulsory	purchase	costs;	

	Ŋ any	off-site	costs,	such	as	those	associated	
with	significant	highways	alterations;	

	Ŋ any	“abnormal”	costs	associated	with	
for	example	listed	buildings,	cleaning	up	
contamination,	or	unusual	ground	conditions;

	Ŋ the	approach	to	the	provision	of	carbon	
compliance	measures	and	investment	in	
allowable	solutions;	and

	Ŋ associated	infrastructure/public	realm	costs.

5.9	 No	detailed	site	surveys	have	been	undertaken	
at	this	stage.

5.10	 For	each	relevant	development	opportunity,	it	
has	been	assumed	that	affordable	housing	will	
be	provided	with	a	mix	of	tenures	at	a	policy	
compliant	level	(40%).		

5.11	 The	residential	market	in	Lichfield	is	robust,	
demonstrating	higher	sales	values	than	
surrounding	areas	in	the	region.		This	generates	
a	positive	underlying	baseline	land	value	for	the	
residential	elements	appraised.		The	healthy	
values	indicate	a	market	demand	and	clear	
potential	for	delivery.	

5.12	 Commercial	development	is	more	challenging	
in	the	current	economic	climate.	However,	
where	the	Council	has	ownership	of	the	
opportunity	sites,	the	value	of	the	land	can	be	
reflected	in	a	number	of	ways	in	the	appraisals	
to	facilitate	an	overall	viable	development;	
either	by	using	positive	values	created	from	
residential	development	to	cross-subsidise	
commercial	elements	or	by	putting	the	land	in	
at	nil	value	as	part	of	a	joint	venture	approach.		

5.13	 Where	there	are	significant	additional	costs	
to	be	met,	such	as	those	identified	above,	
the	levels	of	value	generated	overall	may	be	
sufficient	to	address	all	the	cost	requirements.		
Further	detailed	work	will	be	needed	at	the	
appropriate	stage	to	assess	the	extent	of	any	
shortfall.		This	is	commented	on	in	more	detail	
below.

5.14	 Although	cross-subsidy	of	the	public	sector	
infrastructure	has	not	been	considered	as	
part	of	the	appraisal	process,	there	is	an	
opportunity	to	assist	delivery	in	conjunction	
with	contributions	from	relevant	public	sector	
agencies.	

Implementation process

5.15	 The	table	identifies	the	areas	of	major	change	
which	represent	the	key	priorities	for	action	
over	the	next	20	years.		

5.16	 It	sets	out	the	potential	uses;	links	between	
Development	Opportunities	and	Public	Realm	
Priorities;	issues	and	obstacles;	and	indicative	
project	duration	and	any	anticipated	phasing	of	
masterplan	projects.

61LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 73



SOUTHERN GATEWAY QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Birmingham 
Road 

Gateway

A	new	bus	station,	with	‘pavilion’	building	
and	a	coach	drop-off/pick-up	point.

A	cinema.

Hotel	accommodation.

Small-scale	commercial	business	space	
with	a	limited	amount	of	convenience	
retail.

Residential	apartments	and	houses	
(including	affordable	housing).

A	replacement	multi-storey	car	park	(up	
to	480	spaces).

Council	
Owned

Link	to	improvements	to	the	Birmingham	
Road	Corridor,	including:
•	 gateway	crossing	for	pedestrians	and	
cyclists	across	Birmingham	Road;

•	 a	new	4-way	signal-controlled	crossing	
at	the	egress	of	Station	Road	and	the	Bus	
Station	with	Birmingham	Road;	and

•	 Enhanced	street	tree	planting	along	
Birmingham	Road.

Link	to	improvements	to	the	new	Lichfield	
Transport	Hub,	including:
•	 Improved	integration	of	Lichfield	City	Train	
Station	and	new	Bus	Station;

•	 a	new	Station	Square;
•	 enhanced	visitor	drop-off/pick-up	area	at	
Lichfield	City	Train	Station,	with	blue	badge	
holder	parking	and	taxi	rank	adjacent	new	
Station	Square;

•	 Enhanced	coach	drop-off/	pick-up	bays;	
and

•	 New	Bus	Station	‘pavilion’	building.

Link	to	improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	the	Birmingham	Road	/	St	
John	Street	junction.

Internal	pedestrian	and	cycle	linkages	to	
existing	routes.

Potential	for	adverse	ground	conditions	
from	former	Tempest	Ford	garage	use.

Priority	need	to	negotiate	surrender	of	
existing	lease	from	the	Three	Spires	
Shopping	Centre	of	multi-storey	car	
park.

Potential	(short-medium	term)	impact	
of	temporary	loss	of	parking	on	revenue	
account.

Potential	for	direct	Council-led	
development,	possibly	in	conjunction	
with	a	development	partner.

Negotiations	required	with	Staffordshire	
County	Council,	as	highways	authority,	
regarding	any	changes	to	the	highway	
and	in	providing	a	new	bus	station.

Negotiations	required	with	bus	
operators,	train	operator,	taxi	operators,	
Three	Spires	Shopping	Centre	and	The	
Garrick	Theatre	to	minimise	disruption	to	
operators	and	adjacent	landowners.	

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings.

5-7	years.

Phased	approach.

Phase	One:	Residential	apartments	
and	small-scale	business	units	
(western	section	of	site).

Phase	Two:	Leisure	scheme	
comprising	hotel,	cinema	and	
restaurants,	along	with	residential	
houses	and	apartments.	(central	
section	of	site).

Phase	Three:	Re-provision	of	
MSCP,	along	with	some	leisure	and	
restaurant	uses.

Phase	Four:	Re-provision	of	existing	
Bus	Station.

•	 Select	delivery	route	i.e.	Joint	Venture	
(JV),	traditional	or	hybrid	approach	
(see	Appendix	1).

•	 Seek	Council	approval	of	preferred	
approach.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Negotiations	with	relevant	
stakeholders	and	adjacent	landowners.

•	 Planning	application
•	 Liaison	with	LEPs	to	explore	funding	
opportunities	for	non-commercial	
elements.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	match	
funding	including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

District 
Council 
House

Consolidated	office	space	for	Lichfield	
District	Council	within	existing	building.	

Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	on	St	
John	Street	to	provide	a	self-contained	
serviced	office	and	conference	centre.

Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	
(including	the	Council	Chamber)	to	
provide	a	self-contained	wedding/	
occasion	venue.

Refurbishment	of	the	southern	office	
building	to	provide	a	self-contained	
commercial	and	multi-purpose	
community	space.

Council	
Owned

Interface	with	Birmingham	Road	gateway	
site.

Required	to	be	delivered	in	phases	to	
minimise	disruption	to	the	operation	of	
Lichfield	District	Council.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	Listed	buildings	within	the	
Opportunity	area.

1-2	years

Phased	approach.

Phase	1:	Staff	decanting	programme	
to	allow	refurbishment	of	Offices.

Phase	2:	Conversion	of	Council	
Chamber	and	other	surplus	space	to	
provide	event/conference	venue.

Phase	3:	Conversion	of	remaining	
space	to	self-contained	office	
building.

•	 Option	appraisal.
•	 Seek	Council	approval	of	preferred	
solution.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Identify	internal/	external	funding.
•	 Dialogue	across	departments	within	
Lichfield	District	Council	to	enable	a	
co-ordinated	approach	to	delivery	and	
to	minimise	disruption	to	Council.

•	 Preparation	of	Business	and	Marketing	
plans	for	new	venue	space.

•	 Marketing/Negotiations	with	potential	
occupiers	of	sub-let	office	space.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

62 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 74



SOUTHERN GATEWAY QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Birmingham 
Road 

Gateway

A	new	bus	station,	with	‘pavilion’	building	
and	a	coach	drop-off/pick-up	point.

A	cinema.

Hotel	accommodation.

Small-scale	commercial	business	space	
with	a	limited	amount	of	convenience	
retail.

Residential	apartments	and	houses	
(including	affordable	housing).

A	replacement	multi-storey	car	park	(up	
to	480	spaces).

Council	
Owned

Link	to	improvements	to	the	Birmingham	
Road	Corridor,	including:
•	 gateway	crossing	for	pedestrians	and	
cyclists	across	Birmingham	Road;

•	 a	new	4-way	signal-controlled	crossing	
at	the	egress	of	Station	Road	and	the	Bus	
Station	with	Birmingham	Road;	and

•	 Enhanced	street	tree	planting	along	
Birmingham	Road.

Link	to	improvements	to	the	new	Lichfield	
Transport	Hub,	including:
•	 Improved	integration	of	Lichfield	City	Train	
Station	and	new	Bus	Station;

•	 a	new	Station	Square;
•	 enhanced	visitor	drop-off/pick-up	area	at	
Lichfield	City	Train	Station,	with	blue	badge	
holder	parking	and	taxi	rank	adjacent	new	
Station	Square;

•	 Enhanced	coach	drop-off/	pick-up	bays;	
and

•	 New	Bus	Station	‘pavilion’	building.

Link	to	improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	the	Birmingham	Road	/	St	
John	Street	junction.

Internal	pedestrian	and	cycle	linkages	to	
existing	routes.

Potential	for	adverse	ground	conditions	
from	former	Tempest	Ford	garage	use.

Priority	need	to	negotiate	surrender	of	
existing	lease	from	the	Three	Spires	
Shopping	Centre	of	multi-storey	car	
park.

Potential	(short-medium	term)	impact	
of	temporary	loss	of	parking	on	revenue	
account.

Potential	for	direct	Council-led	
development,	possibly	in	conjunction	
with	a	development	partner.

Negotiations	required	with	Staffordshire	
County	Council,	as	highways	authority,	
regarding	any	changes	to	the	highway	
and	in	providing	a	new	bus	station.

Negotiations	required	with	bus	
operators,	train	operator,	taxi	operators,	
Three	Spires	Shopping	Centre	and	The	
Garrick	Theatre	to	minimise	disruption	to	
operators	and	adjacent	landowners.	

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings.

5-7	years.

Phased	approach.

Phase	One:	Residential	apartments	
and	small-scale	business	units	
(western	section	of	site).

Phase	Two:	Leisure	scheme	
comprising	hotel,	cinema	and	
restaurants,	along	with	residential	
houses	and	apartments.	(central	
section	of	site).

Phase	Three:	Re-provision	of	
MSCP,	along	with	some	leisure	and	
restaurant	uses.

Phase	Four:	Re-provision	of	existing	
Bus	Station.

•	 Select	delivery	route	i.e.	Joint	Venture	
(JV),	traditional	or	hybrid	approach	
(see	Appendix	1).

•	 Seek	Council	approval	of	preferred	
approach.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Negotiations	with	relevant	
stakeholders	and	adjacent	landowners.

•	 Planning	application
•	 Liaison	with	LEPs	to	explore	funding	
opportunities	for	non-commercial	
elements.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	match	
funding	including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

District 
Council 
House

Consolidated	office	space	for	Lichfield	
District	Council	within	existing	building.	

Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	on	St	
John	Street	to	provide	a	self-contained	
serviced	office	and	conference	centre.

Conversion	of	part	of	the	buildings	
(including	the	Council	Chamber)	to	
provide	a	self-contained	wedding/	
occasion	venue.

Refurbishment	of	the	southern	office	
building	to	provide	a	self-contained	
commercial	and	multi-purpose	
community	space.

Council	
Owned

Interface	with	Birmingham	Road	gateway	
site.

Required	to	be	delivered	in	phases	to	
minimise	disruption	to	the	operation	of	
Lichfield	District	Council.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	Listed	buildings	within	the	
Opportunity	area.

1-2	years

Phased	approach.

Phase	1:	Staff	decanting	programme	
to	allow	refurbishment	of	Offices.

Phase	2:	Conversion	of	Council	
Chamber	and	other	surplus	space	to	
provide	event/conference	venue.

Phase	3:	Conversion	of	remaining	
space	to	self-contained	office	
building.

•	 Option	appraisal.
•	 Seek	Council	approval	of	preferred	
solution.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Identify	internal/	external	funding.
•	 Dialogue	across	departments	within	
Lichfield	District	Council	to	enable	a	
co-ordinated	approach	to	delivery	and	
to	minimise	disruption	to	Council.

•	 Preparation	of	Business	and	Marketing	
plans	for	new	venue	space.

•	 Marketing/Negotiations	with	potential	
occupiers	of	sub-let	office	space.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

63LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 75



MARKET QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Bird Street 
Courtyard 

Public	car	park	(up	to	55	parking	
spaces).

Residential	apartments	(up	to	12	
apartments	subject	to	planning).

Commercial	floorspace	such	as	a	café/	
bar/	restaurant/	community	uses	(2	
ground	floor	units).	

Council	
Owned

Link	to	improvements	to	Bird	Street	Walk,	
including:
•	 New	planting	and	rain	garden/	SuDS	within	
Bird	Street	Courtyard;

•	 Improved	street	lighting	along	Bird	Street	
Walk;

•	 Use	of	colour	and	street	furniture	to	enliven	
Bird	Street	Walk;

•	 Provision	of	windows	in	adjacent	units	to	
overlook	the	route;	and

•	 Should	the	opportunity	arise	the	
reconfiguration	or	redevelopment	of	premises	
fronting	Market	Street	could	allow	for	the	
widening	of	Bird	Street	Walk.

Link	to	improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	Bird	Street/	Swan	Road	
junction.

Active	development	frontages	to	be	created	as	
part	of	the	Bird	Street	Courtyard	Development	
Opportunity.

Bird	Street	car	park	has	the	highest	
occupancy	rate	of	all	car	parks.		

Displaced	car	parking	spaces	(circa	
119	spaces)	to	be	re-provided	as	part	
of	a	new	multi-storey	car	park	at	the	
Birmingham	Road	Gateway.

Proximity	to	existing	trees	could	
necessitate	tree	protection	works	at	
additional	cost.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings	
and	the	adjacent	registered	Park	and	
Garden.

1-2	years.

Single	Phase.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Dialogue	with	potential	development	
partners	re	finance/	funding	options	
for	delivery.

•	 Planning	application
•	 Dialogue	within	Lichfield	District	
Council,	regarding	the	part	relocation	
of	parking	spaces.

•	 Negotiations	with	Lichfield	City	
Council,	as	the	adjacent	landowner	of	
Minster	Pool	Walk.

•	 Negotiations	with	operators	of	the	
adjacent	commercial	units,	to	minimise	
disturbance	to	the	operation	and	
servicing	access	of	these	units.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

Pedestrian 
Priority Streets/
improvements 
to pedestrian 
walkways and 

linkages

	The	re-opening	of	Lower	Bore	Street	
to	permitted	vehicles	(blue	badge	
holders,	permit	holders	and	loading	
vehicles).

The	closing	of	Conduit	Street,	Market	
Street	and	Breadmarket	Street	to	
through-traffic,	except	for	permit	
holders	and	loading	vehicles.

Introducing	street	furniture	and	public	
realm	interventions	such	as	timber	
bollards	(potential	use	of	automatic	
bollards)	and	clear	street	signage	to	
signal	to	all	users	those	areas	which	
are	pedestrianised	and	those	which	
are	not.

	Improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	the	Bird	Street/	Bore	
Street/	The	Friary	junction.

	Improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	to	Cross	Keys	and	Stowe	
Pool	via	alleys.

N/A N/A	-	Public	Realm	Project	 Necessity	for	Traffic	Regulation	Orders	
(where	necessary).

Liaison	with	adjacent	businesses	
affected	by	changes	including	access	for	
customers	and	servicing.

Over	lifetime	of	Masterplan. •	 Consider	development	of	Public	Realm	
Design	Guide

•	 Scheme	design
•	 Implement	Traffic	Regulation	Orders
•	 Develop	funding	strategy/business	
plans	for	funding	applications	to	LEPs.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

64 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 76



MARKET QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Bird Street 
Courtyard 

Public	car	park	(up	to	55	parking	
spaces).

Residential	apartments	(up	to	12	
apartments	subject	to	planning).

Commercial	floorspace	such	as	a	café/	
bar/	restaurant/	community	uses	(2	
ground	floor	units).	

Council	
Owned

Link	to	improvements	to	Bird	Street	Walk,	
including:
•	 New	planting	and	rain	garden/	SuDS	within	
Bird	Street	Courtyard;

•	 Improved	street	lighting	along	Bird	Street	
Walk;

•	 Use	of	colour	and	street	furniture	to	enliven	
Bird	Street	Walk;

•	 Provision	of	windows	in	adjacent	units	to	
overlook	the	route;	and

•	 Should	the	opportunity	arise	the	
reconfiguration	or	redevelopment	of	premises	
fronting	Market	Street	could	allow	for	the	
widening	of	Bird	Street	Walk.

Link	to	improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	Bird	Street/	Swan	Road	
junction.

Active	development	frontages	to	be	created	as	
part	of	the	Bird	Street	Courtyard	Development	
Opportunity.

Bird	Street	car	park	has	the	highest	
occupancy	rate	of	all	car	parks.		

Displaced	car	parking	spaces	(circa	
119	spaces)	to	be	re-provided	as	part	
of	a	new	multi-storey	car	park	at	the	
Birmingham	Road	Gateway.

Proximity	to	existing	trees	could	
necessitate	tree	protection	works	at	
additional	cost.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings	
and	the	adjacent	registered	Park	and	
Garden.

1-2	years.

Single	Phase.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Dialogue	with	potential	development	
partners	re	finance/	funding	options	
for	delivery.

•	 Planning	application
•	 Dialogue	within	Lichfield	District	
Council,	regarding	the	part	relocation	
of	parking	spaces.

•	 Negotiations	with	Lichfield	City	
Council,	as	the	adjacent	landowner	of	
Minster	Pool	Walk.

•	 Negotiations	with	operators	of	the	
adjacent	commercial	units,	to	minimise	
disturbance	to	the	operation	and	
servicing	access	of	these	units.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	
development	opportunity.

Pedestrian 
Priority Streets/
improvements 
to pedestrian 
walkways and 

linkages

	The	re-opening	of	Lower	Bore	Street	
to	permitted	vehicles	(blue	badge	
holders,	permit	holders	and	loading	
vehicles).

The	closing	of	Conduit	Street,	Market	
Street	and	Breadmarket	Street	to	
through-traffic,	except	for	permit	
holders	and	loading	vehicles.

Introducing	street	furniture	and	public	
realm	interventions	such	as	timber	
bollards	(potential	use	of	automatic	
bollards)	and	clear	street	signage	to	
signal	to	all	users	those	areas	which	
are	pedestrianised	and	those	which	
are	not.

	Improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	at	the	Bird	Street/	Bore	
Street/	The	Friary	junction.

	Improvements	to	pedestrian	walkways	
and	linkages,	to	Cross	Keys	and	Stowe	
Pool	via	alleys.

N/A N/A	-	Public	Realm	Project	 Necessity	for	Traffic	Regulation	Orders	
(where	necessary).

Liaison	with	adjacent	businesses	
affected	by	changes	including	access	for	
customers	and	servicing.

Over	lifetime	of	Masterplan. •	 Consider	development	of	Public	Realm	
Design	Guide

•	 Scheme	design
•	 Implement	Traffic	Regulation	Orders
•	 Develop	funding	strategy/business	
plans	for	funding	applications	to	LEPs.

•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

65LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 77



CATHEDRAL QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Improvements to Minster 
Pool Walk , including:  

• Provision of a new 
footpath/ cycle route to 
the north of Minster Pool,  
to enable a circular walk 
to be established.

• Additional street lighting 
to new route.

- Public/	
Private	

Ownership

N/A	-	Public	Realm	Project Land	in	multiple	ownerships.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings	
and	the	adjacent	registered	Park	and	
Garden.

Existence	of	mature	trees	which	could	
potentially	require	removal.

Construction	of	new	footpath	in	close	
proximity	to	Minster	Pool.

2-3	years. •	 Negotiations	with	landowners.
•	 Scheme	Design.
•	 Funding	including	s106	and	CIL.

BUSI NESS & LEARNI NG QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

University West Car Park A	rationalised	area	of	
car	parking.

Coach	parking	
(at	least	10	coach	
parking	spaces).

Commercial	business	
space,	suitable	for	
SMEs	and	start-ups	
(c.	1,800	sqm)

Private	
Ownership

- Land	in	private	ownership.

If	coach	parking	is	not	able	to	be	delivered	
on	this	site,	coach	parking	spaces	will	
need	to	be	provided	for	within	the	new	
bus	station,	as	part	of	the	Birmingham	
Road	Gateway.

1-2	years. •	 Continue	to	engage	with	landowner	
to	establish	prospects	for	its	re-
development.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Planning	application.
•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	development	
opportunity.

CI TY CENTRE WI DE

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Signage and 
Wayfinding Strategy 

To	provide	clear	and	
consistent	signage	
and	wayfinding	
across	the	city	centre	
and	at	key	transport	
gateways.

To	provide	
improvement	in	
legibility	across	the	
City	Centre	and	to	
reinforce	identity.

N/A N/A	–	Public	Realm	Project Ensuring	new	signage	and	wayfinding	is	
inclusive.	

Identification	of	appropriate	locations	(i.e.	
having	regard	to	location	of	underground	
services	etc).

Over	lifetime	of	Masterplan. •	 Scheme	Design.
•	 Develop	Signage	and	Wayfinding	
Strategy	(including	consultation).

•	 Identify	sources	of	funding	including	
s106	and	CIL.

66 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 78



CATHEDRAL QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Improvements to Minster 
Pool Walk , including:  

• Provision of a new 
footpath/ cycle route to 
the north of Minster Pool,  
to enable a circular walk 
to be established.

• Additional street lighting 
to new route.

- Public/	
Private	

Ownership

N/A	-	Public	Realm	Project Land	in	multiple	ownerships.

New	development	to	have	regard	to	the	
setting	of	surrounding	Listed	buildings	
and	the	adjacent	registered	Park	and	
Garden.

Existence	of	mature	trees	which	could	
potentially	require	removal.

Construction	of	new	footpath	in	close	
proximity	to	Minster	Pool.

2-3	years. •	 Negotiations	with	landowners.
•	 Scheme	Design.
•	 Funding	including	s106	and	CIL.

BUSI NESS & LEARNI NG QUARTER

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

University West Car Park A	rationalised	area	of	
car	parking.

Coach	parking	
(at	least	10	coach	
parking	spaces).

Commercial	business	
space,	suitable	for	
SMEs	and	start-ups	
(c.	1,800	sqm)

Private	
Ownership

- Land	in	private	ownership.

If	coach	parking	is	not	able	to	be	delivered	
on	this	site,	coach	parking	spaces	will	
need	to	be	provided	for	within	the	new	
bus	station,	as	part	of	the	Birmingham	
Road	Gateway.

1-2	years. •	 Continue	to	engage	with	landowner	
to	establish	prospects	for	its	re-
development.

•	 Development	Brief.
•	 Planning	application.
•	 Identify	other	sources	of	funding	
including	S106	and	CIL.

•	 Bring	forward	the	site	as	a	development	
opportunity.

CI TY CENTRE WI DE

Project Description Ownership Potential linkage with Public Realm 
Priorities & improvements Issues and Obstacles Indicative Project Duration & 

any Phasing Implications
Outline process for implementation – 
actions for Lichfield District Council

Signage and 
Wayfinding Strategy 

To	provide	clear	and	
consistent	signage	
and	wayfinding	
across	the	city	centre	
and	at	key	transport	
gateways.

To	provide	
improvement	in	
legibility	across	the	
City	Centre	and	to	
reinforce	identity.

N/A N/A	–	Public	Realm	Project Ensuring	new	signage	and	wayfinding	is	
inclusive.	

Identification	of	appropriate	locations	(i.e.	
having	regard	to	location	of	underground	
services	etc).

Over	lifetime	of	Masterplan. •	 Scheme	Design.
•	 Develop	Signage	and	Wayfinding	
Strategy	(including	consultation).

•	 Identify	sources	of	funding	including	
s106	and	CIL.

67LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 79



Timescales

5.17	 The	sequencing	of	project	delivery	will	depend	
on	a	host	of	decisions	and	funding	and	due	to	
the	complexity	of	the	development	process	are	
uncertain.	In	many	cases	they	will	be	reliant	
on	third	party	involvement	and	commitment.		
However,	reflecting	the	priority	of	the	identified	
schedule	of	projects,	we	have	categorised	the	
proposals	into	short,	medium-	and	longer-
term	anticipated	delivery	timescales.	In	any	
delivery	plan	it	is	important	to	identify	quick	
wins	to	carry	momentum	through	from	the	
masterplanning	stage.	

5.18	 A	suggested	masterplan	delivery	programme	
is	set	out	in	the	diagram	below.	This	takes	into	
account	that	some	of	the	projects	might	be	
complex	and	long	term	and	involve	a	number	
of	phases,	whilst	others	will	be	delivered	more	
quickly.	The	timescales	will	rely	on	certainty	
about	resources.			

5.19	 The	timeframes	reflected	in	the	delivery	
programme	are	as	follows:
	Ŋ Immediate	years	1-2;
	Ŋ Short	years	2-7;
	Ŋ Medium	years	8-15	years;	and
	Ŋ Long	15	+	years.

	
5.20	 As	indicated	in	the	table	and	diagram	below,	

Birmingham	Road	Gateway	will	be	the	most	
complex	of	the	opportunity	sites	to	deliver.	
Early	phases	will	play	an	important	enabling	
role	in	the	delivery	of	the	later,	less	commercial	
phases	of	development.	Given	the	complexity,	
there	are	a	number	of	routes	to	delivery	which	
can	be	considered.	An	explanation	of	these	
delivery	routes	is	set	out	in	the	Appendix	1	to	
the	Masterplan.

Indicative Masterplan Delivery Programme

OPPORTUNITY SITES PUBLIC REALM

BIRD STREET WALK 
BIRD STREET/SWAN LAKE JUNCTION

CATHEDRAL QUARTER PUBLIC REALM WORKS

GATEWAY CROSSING / LINKAGES
NEW STATION SQUARE

LO
NG

 T
ER

M

BIRD STREET CAR PARK

M
ED

IU
M
 T
ER

M BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
GATEWAY (PHASE 3)
BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
GATEWAY (PHASE 4)

SH
OR

TT
ER

M DISTRICT COUNCIL OFFICES
BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
GATEWAY (PHASE 1)
BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
GATEWAY (PHASE 2)

IN
TE
RM

ED
IA
TE
 

TE
RM UNIVERSITY WEST 

CAR PARK

PE
DE

ST
RI
AN

 P
RI
OR

IT
Y 
ST
RE

ET
S 
/ W

AL
KW

AY
S 
& 
LI
NK

AG
ES

SI
GN

AG
E 
AN

D 
W
AY
FI
ND

IN
G

68 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 80



Lichfield District Council’s Role & Funding 

5.21	 The	plan	has	been	prepared	at	a	time	of	
considerable	economic	uncertainty	and	
cautious	levels	of	private	sector	investment.	In	
addition	to	any	funds	generated	through	the	
development	of	the	Birmingham	Road	Gateway	
and	Bird	Street	Courtyard	sites,	the	Council	will	
need	to	assemble	a	suite	of	possible	funding	
sources	to	drive	the	pace	of	development.

5.22	 As	outlined	above,	the	high-level	viability	
assessments	have	indicated	that	a	level	of	
cross-subsidisation	could	assist	in	the	delivery	
of	public	sector	infrastructure.	However,	this	
will	need	to	be	supported	by	other	internal	and	
external	sources	of	funding.	

5.23	 These	could	include:
•	 Public	Works	Loan	Board	(PWLB)	borrowing	

against	future	investment	income;
•	 Community	Infrastructure	Levy	(CIL)	–	tariffs	

for	infrastructure	to	help	serve	and	unlock	new	
developments;

•	 Working	with	the	Local	Enterprise	Partnerships	to	
draw	down	funding	to	support	infrastructure	and	
developments.	Lichfield	District	is	a	member	of	
two	LEPs	(Stoke	on	Trent	Staffordshire	LEP	and	
Greater	Birmingham	&	Solihull	LEP).	The	LEPs’	
Strategic	Economic	Plans	provide	a	strategy	
for	delivering	economic	growth.	LEPs	have	
increasingly	become	a	key	source	of	funding	for	
the	delivery	of	transport	improvements	through	
the	Single	Local	Growth	Fund;

•	 Transport	funding	from	Staffordshire	County	
Council	-	As	Highway	Authority,	Staffordshire	
County	Council	will	play	a	key	role	via	their	
involvement	in	the	development	of	the	
Birmingham	Road	Corridor	and	Transport	Hub	
in	addition	to	their	support	for	sustainable	travel	
schemes	including	pedestrian	and	cycling	
initiatives;

•	 Contributions	from	Rail	and	Bus	operating	
companies;	and

•	 An	application	to	the	Future	High	Streets	Fund.

5.24	 As	indicated	above,	other	public	sector	bodies	
will	play	a	role	in	supporting	the	masterplan.	

There	may	be	potential	to	tap	into	new	funding	
streams	and	therefore	a	funding	and	bidding	
strategy	needs	to	be	considered	to	allow	the	
Council	to	be	in	a	position	to	apply	to	these	
new	funds	when	announced.

5.25	 The	above	mechanisms	can	help	support	
development,	but	the	masterplan	can	also	
generate	self-sustaining	investment	by	creating	
confidence	amongst	developers,	investors	and	
occupiers	regarding	the	prosperity	of	the	city	
centre.	The	masterplan	proposals	will	increase	
private	sector	confidence	and	help	create	an	
environment	for	investment.	An	open	dialogue	
with	developers	will	help	to	ensure	high	quality	
development	can	be	achieved.

5.26	 In	addition,	developer	contributions	(S106	
Agreements)	will	assist	in	delivering	the	
masterplan.	The	Council	will	need	to	ensure	
that	development	in	Lichfield	makes	its	full	
contribution	to	mitigating	its	impact	on	the	
environment	and	on	the	plans	for	improved	
public	realm	infrastructure.	The	Council	will	
seek	to	enter	into	legal	agreements	with	private	
developers	under	Section	106	of	the	Town	and	
Country	Planning	Act	1990.	This	could	include	
agreements	for	contributions	to	projects	within	
the	masterplan	such	as
	Ŋ The	improvement	to	public	spaces	and	
wayfinding/legibility	in	the	city	centre.

	Ŋ Improving	facilities	for	pedestrians	and	cyclists	
and	car	parking.

	Ŋ Infrastructure	requirements.

5.27	 Achieving	such	agreements	will	be	predicated	
on	the	financial	viability	of	schemes.		As	
development	proposals	come	forward	within	
the	life	of	the	plan,	it	will	be	important	for	the	
District	Council	to	identify	any	links	with	the	
masterplan	proposals	and	seek	to	agree	a	
financial	contribution.	

5.28	 Overall,	the	Council’s	role	will	be	to	ensure	that	
developments	are	shaped	to	create	sustainable	
and	perpetuating	value	through	the	most	
suitable	delivery	route.

69LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 81



The	site	is	anticipated	to	be	brought	forward	in	four	
phases:
1.	 Phase	One:	Residential	apartments	and	small-

scale	business	units
2.	 Phase	Two:	Residential	houses/apartments	and	

leisure	–	hotel/	cinema	/restaurants
3.	 Phase	Three:	MSCP,	restaurant/	leisure	uses
4.	 Phase	Four:	Bus	Station	(re-provision	of	existing)

The	following	sets	out	the	potential	routes	to	delivery.	
The	final	route	chosen	will	depend	on	the	Council’s	
approach	to	risk,	reward	and	appetite	for	investment.

BIRMINGHAM ROAD 
GATEWAY DELIVERY 
ROUTES

APPENDIX 1

70 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 82



1. Traditional Route

Delivery	through	this	route	entails	the	disposal	of	the	
Birmingham	Road	Gateway	site	in	return	for	a	capital	
receipt.	The	site	would	be	delivered	in	its	entirety	
by	the	private	sector,	which	keeps	public	sector	
involvement	relatively	minimal.

It	is	important	to	recognise	that	minimal	public	sector	
involvement	transfers	all	risk	to	the	private	sector.	This	
includes	the	risk	of	delivering	a	mixed-use	scheme	
and	relatively	higher	borrowing	costs.	The	developer	
compensates	itself	for	accepting	these	risks	by	
seeking	a	high	profit,	which	subsequently	affects	the	
amount	that	is	available	to	be	paid	to	the	Council	as	a	
capital	receipt	for	the	sale	of	its	land.	

The	implementation	process	requires	the	preparation	
of	a	development	and	planning	brief	for	the	entire	
scheme	to	inform	the	procurement	of	a	development	
partner	and	the	negotiation	of	a	development	
agreement.	The	parties	will	then	need	to	agree	a	
detailed	design	to	enable	the	selected	development	
partner	to	progress	the	planning	process.	

The	initial	high-level	viability	appraisal	indicates	the	
potential	for	a	positive	capital	receipt	to	be	generated.	
While	this	demonstrates	viability,	the	proceeds	are	not	
anticipated	to	be	of	sufficient	magnitude	to	cover	the	
full	cost	of	delivering	public	realm	works	and	make	a	
significant	contribution	towards	the	re-provision	of	the	
bus	station.	

It	is	therefore	anticipated	that	this	route	will	require	
additional	alternative	funding	to	be	identified	to	
deliver	the	wider	improvements	identified	in	the	
Masterplan

2. Split Delivery Route

This	delivery	route	requires	the	District	Council	to	
separate	the	residential	and	commercial	elements	of	
the	scheme.	

The	residential	component	would	be	disposed	to	the	
private	sector	in	return	for	a	capital	receipt.	A	purely	
residential	scheme	exposes	the	developer	to	lower	
risk,	which	in	turn	generates	a	potentially	higher	
capital	value	for	the	Council.	The	implementation	
process	for	the	residential	element	requires	
a	development	and	planning	brief	and	a	sale	
agreement.	

Under	this	approach,	it	is	assumed	that	the	
commercial	element	together	with	car	parking	
would	be	funded	by	the	Council	through	prudential	
borrowing	and	delivered	by	way	of	a	Development	
Management	agreement	and	procurement	of	a	
contractor.		The	Council	would	use	its	own	land,	and	
instead	of	securing	a	land	value	on	disposal,	would	
invest	on	the	basis	that	the	income	would	provide	
a	return	on	investment.		It	is	anticipated	that	this	
would	provide	surplus	income	over	and	above	that	
required	to	service	the	debt.		This	would	also	give	the	
Council	direct	control	of	the	commercial	units,	and	
their	management	going	forward.		This	is	an	approach	
being	more	commonly	adopted	by	the	public	sector	
across	the	UK,	where	the	return	on	investment	model	
can	deliver	greater	flexibility,	and	enable	the	Council	
to	determine	the	mix	of	commercial	uses	to	best	
benefit	the	overall	city	centre	offer	over	time.		Clearly	
this	represents	a	greater	degree	of	financial	risk	to	the	
Council,	but	this	is	to	some	extent	balanced	by	the	
higher	capital	receipt	from	the	disposal	of	the	purely	
residential	element.

The	Council	benefits	from	lower	borrowing	costs	
through	Public	Works	Loan	Board	(PWLB)	funding,	
which	allows	it	to	deliver	the	scheme	at	a	lower	
overall	cost	than	the	private	sector.	There	are	also	no	
carrying	costs	on	the	value	of	the	land.

71LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 83



The	initial	high-level	viability	appraisal	indicates	that	
the	disposal	of	the	residential	elements	of	the	scheme	
could	generate	capital	receipts	of	more	than	double	
that	anticipated	under	option	1	and	could	also	secure	
a	return	on	investment	from	the	retention	of	the	
commercial	scheme	significantly	in	surplus	of	that	
required	to	cover	loan	repayment	costs	and	a	prudent	
sinking	fund.	This	could	provide	the	Council	with	
an	income	stream	that	supports	further	borrowing	
capacity.	This	could	generate	the	means	to	fund	
significant	public	realm	works	and	make	a	meaningful	
contribution	towards	the	cost	and	delivery	of	the	bus	
station.	

3.  Joint Venture Route 

This	route	requires	the	Council	to	deliver	the	entire	
scheme	through	a	Joint	Venture	partnership	with	a	
developer	(JV).	This	approach	is	more	similar	to	the	
traditional	Development	partner	route	set	out	at	1	
above,	but	involves	the	Council	providing	the	land	
at	no	initial	cost	and	borrowing	the	funds	to	meet	
the	cost	of	developing	the	scheme.		The	JV	partner	
is	responsible	for	the	construction	and	bears	the	
construction	risk.		On	completion	the	residential	
elements	would	be	sold,	generating	capital.	The	
commercial	investment	could	also	be	sold,	enabling	
the	short	term	borrowing	to	fund	the	development	to	
be	repaid,	and	the	net	proceeds	shared	according	to	
an	agreed	formula.	As	the	Council	is	responsible	for	
funding,	the	scheme	benefits	from	lower	borrowing	
costs,	and	the	JV	partner	is	able	to	accept	a	lower	
level	of	profit	as	both	carrying	costs	and	risk	are	
reduced,	and	there	is	no	requirement	to	privately	
forward	fund	the	delivery.	

The	Council’s	proceeds	can	be	either	capital,	
income	if	it	decides	to	retain	ownership	of	the	
development	on	completion,	or	a	combination	of	the	
two;	the	proportion	of	which	is	determined	by	the	JV	
agreement.	The	Council’s	capital	receipt	is	typically	
determined	once	the	development	costs,	borrowing	
costs	and	the	JV	partner’s	profit	have	been	accounted	
for.	

The	implementation	process	requires	the	
procurement	of	a	JV	partner	and	the	negotiation	
of	a	JV	agreement,	which	carries	upfront	costs.	
The	scheme	will	also	need	to	be	supported	by	a	
development	and	planning	brief	and	detailed	design	
and	planning,	as	for	the	more	traditional	option.	

The	initial	high-level	viability	appraisal	indicates	
the	potential	for	a	flexible	outcome	involving	a	
combination	of	capital	receipts	and	revenue.	However,	
whilst	this	may	provide	a	higher	overall	value	to	the	
Council	than	option	1,	it	is	important	to	highlight	that,	
based	on	the	appraisals	undertaken,	this	route	is	
less	flexible	than	option	2	in	respect	of	the	available	
funding	and	capacity	to	contribute	towards	public	
realm	works	and	the	provision	of	the	bus	station.

72 LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 84



73LICHFIELD CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN  |  Draft Masterplan Report  |  By David Lock Associates  |  December 2019Page 85



DAVID LOCK ASSOCIATES LTD.
50 North Thirteenth Street
Central Milton Keynes
MK9 3BP

+44 (0) 1908 666276
mail@davidlock.com
www.davidlock.com

Page 86



Appendix B Consultation methodology and promotional material

Draft masterplan consultation 6th January 2020 to 3rd February 2020

Consultation and engagement Lichfield residents, businesses and services

Advertise well in advance through press release, promotional material and dedicated website 
link

Target key groups inviting to submit comments

Facilitate on line submission of comments

Public Exhibition St Mary’s Church Friday 17th & Saturday 18th January 2020 – Promotional 
material provided

Analysis of consultation & engagement results

Consultation report prepared alongside finalised masterplan

Promotional material drafted Draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan

Consultation leaflet

Consultation flyer

A board poster (For display outside library)

Masterplan questionnaire

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Lichfield District Council wants the city of Lichfield 
to continue to prosper as a vibrant, successful and 
valued place, by diversifying the range of uses and 
activities available and in making the most of the 

city’s existing historic assets and character.  

The masterplan is supported by a Delivery 
Strategy, to help ensure that proposals in the 

masterplan are both achievable and deliverable.    

THE DRAFT MASTERPLAN IS ASPIRATIONAL, 
SETS OUT A CLEAR DIRECTION FOR THE FUTURE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY CENTRE, BUT IS 
ALSO REALISTIC,  HAVING REGARD TO WHAT IS 
ACHIEVABLE AND, IMPORTANTLY, DELIVERABLE.

The draft masterplan proposes the delivery of new 
development and public realm improvements which are 
designed to complement and connect with one another.  
The Council has appointed a team of town planning and 
urban design specialists, led by David Lock Associates, 

to produce the masterplan for the city centre.

The draft masterplan has been informed by an extensive 
analysis of the city centre which identified key issues 

and options.  Th analysis built on the feedback provided 
as part of the public consultation exercise held in 

Spring 2019, which focussed on the Birmingham Road 
site.  The results have shaped the draft masterplan.

Page 89



The draft masterplan strategy focuses on four core 
proposals.  These have been developed having regard 
to the analysis undertaken, which provided the insight as 
to the role, function and characteristics of Lichfield and 
also the issues that need to be addressed to maintain 
the city centre as a vibrant, successful and valued place.

THE DRAFT MASTERPLAN 
STRATEGY: FOUR CORE PROPOSALS 

One: Masterplan Objectives

Six masterplan objectives have been identified, to help 
capture and address identified issues in the city centre; 
and to help underpin projects set out in the masterplan.

BI
RM

IN
GH

AM
 RO

AD
 GA

TE
W
AY

D
IS
TR

IC
T C

O
U
N
C
IL
 H
O
U
SE

U
N
IV
ER

SI
TY

 W
ES

T C
AR

 PA
RK

BI
RD

 ST
RE

ET
 C
O
U
RT

YA
RD

Page 90



PUBLIC REALM PRIORITIES

A.	 Birmingham	Road	Corridor. The Birmingham Road forms a key 
element of the southern gateway to Lichfield.

B.	 Lichfield	Transport	Hub.	 Presenting a first impression of Lichfield, as 
people transition from being a passenger to a pedestrian.

C.	 Bird	Street	Passage.		Environmental enhancements to be made to this 
important pedestrian link between Bird Street and Market Street. 

D.	 Circular	Minster	Pool	Walk .	 Providing a new footpath to the north of 
Minster Pool to facilitate a circular walk. 

E.	 Pedestrian	priority	streets.		Interventions within the pedestrianised 
areas of the city to improve pedestrian safety.

F.	 Pedestrian	walkways	and	linkages.		Enhancements to pedestrian 
movement within focused areas of the city.

G.	 Signage	and	wayfinding.		Clear and consistent signage and wayfinding 
across the city centre.

OPPORTUNITY AREAS

1.	 Birmingham	Road	Gateway.  A mix of new uses alongside public realm 
enhancements to create a revitalised southern gateway to Lichfield.

2.	 District	Council	House.		Providing enhancements to the District Council 
House to provide for additional commercial/community uses.

3.	 Bird	Street	Car	Park.		A mix of new housing and commercial 
opportunities to animate Minster Pool Walk alongside car parking. 

4.	 University	West	Car	Park.	 Parking for coaches and cars and new small-
scale offices. 

In addition, the draft masterplan identifies Transition Areas, located at 
the periphery of the masterplan area, and provide a future opportunity for 
enhancement.  They comprise: City Centre East; City Centre West; and City 
Centre South.  

Two: Masterplan Quarters 

In order to better understand the city centre, 
and provide a means of focusing investment, the 
masterplan identifies four overlapping city Quarters:

 Ŋ Gateway;
 Ŋ City Core;
 Ŋ Cathedral; and
 Ŋ Business and Learning.

Three: Masterplan Opportunity Areas & Public 
Realm Priorities

The masterplan proposes projects which include new developments and 
enhancements to the public realm. 

1.	 Architectural	design	quality – new development to reinforces the 
city’s historic character and identity, whilst not precluding high-quality 
contemporary architecture.

2.	 Materials	&	detailing – a restrained palette of high-quality materials to 
firmly establish the character and identity of the masterplan area.

3.	 Attractive	&	usable	public	realm – new public realm to offer ease of 
movement for pedestrians and be designed to feel safe and pleasant to 
use by all.

4.	 Designing	for	health – promoting an active and healthy city centre, to 
deliver health and wellbeing benefits.

Four: Masterplan Design Principles 
The masterplan design principles have been devised to help ensure that development coming 
forward in the city centre achieves high levels of quality commensurate with its outstanding 
historic character.

Page 91



The draft masterplan identifies sites for future development and public 
realm improvements to complement and connect with one another.  The 
masterplan will shape the future growth of the city centre of Lichfield as 
a means of enhancing what is already a strong and vibrant centre.

The masterplan is supported by a Delivery Strategy, to help ensure that 
projects in the masterplan are both achievable and deliverable.  

The Delivery Strategy sets out how the projects identified in the draft 
masterplan will be achieved through the short, medium and longer term.  
Potential infrastructure funding sources are identified to help facilitate 
their delivery.

The masterplan will be considered as part of the Local Plan review 
process and any future Development Briefs for specific sites.

DELIVERY

GETTING INVOLVED
A full copy of the draft masterplan can be downloaded from 
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/city-centre-regeneration/
consultations together with an on-line interactive questionnaire.  
Alternatively, a questionnaire can be downloaded, completed 
and emailed to lichfieldmasterplan@davidlock.com.

Consultation on the draft masterplan will be open from 6th 
January to the 3rd February 2020. 

There is a public exhibition for you to come and talk to the team.  
Details of the exhibition are provided below.

Friday	17	January
9am – 5pm  |  Lichfield Library

Saturday	18	January
9am – 4pm  |  Lichfield Library
 
After this period of consultation on the draft masterplan 
comments and recommendations will be analysed and the final 
version of the document prepared and presented to the Council.

Page 92



There is a public exhibition for you to come & talk 
to the team – please see details of this overleaf.

You can also download the draft masterplan 
report & complete an online survey via:
www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/citycentreplan

LI CHFI ELD
CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN

PUBLIC CONSULTATION EVENT
6 JANUARY TO 3 FEBRUARY

Page 93



LI CHFI ELD
CITY CENTRE MASTERPLAN

PUBLIC CONSULTATION EVENT
Friday 17 January

9am - 5pm  |  Lichfield Library

Saturday 18 January
9am - 4pm  |  Lichfield Library

6 JANUARY TO 3 FEBRUARY

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



      

1

Lichfield City Centre Masterplan
Consultation Questionnaire

This is your opportunity to comment on the draft Lichfield City Centre Masterplan 
that is available via Lichfield District Council’s website.
Please provide your comments using the on-line interactive questionnaire.  
Alternatively, you can complete this questionnaire form and e-mail to 
lichfieldmasterplan@davidlock.com 
Consultation on the draft masterplan is open from 6th January to the 3rd February 
2020.

Lichfield District Council will only use the information provided in accordance with the Data Protection Act 
2018 for the purposes of informing the Lichfield City Centre Masterplan.  The information will not be 
shared with any third parties without your consent unless required to by law.

A. ABOUT YOU
(These questions are optional)

i. Please enter your postcode: …………………

ii. Do you live in Lichfield? Yes    ☐ No    ☐  

iii. Do you work in Lichfield? Yes    ☐ No    ☐  

iv. Do you regularly shop in Lichfield (at least once every fortnight)?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  

v. Are you visiting Lichfield?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  

vi. What is your age range?

Under 17 years old ☐ 45-54 years old ☐  

18-24 years old ☐ 55-64 years old ☐    

25-34 years old ☐ 65-74 years old ☐   

35-44 years old ☐ 75 years or older ☐    

Page 97

http://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/city-centre-regeneration/consultations
mailto:lichfieldmasterplan@davidlock.com


      

2

B. MASTERPLAN APPROACH
1) Development opportunities and public realm priorities have been identified 

to help meet the six masterplan objectives.  
Do you think that the overall strategy is correct?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

2) Is it helpful to think about the city centre in terms of Quarters? 

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

C. DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES
Development Opportunities have been identified to enhance the role and 
function of the key sites in the City Centre.

3) Do you think the ‘Birmingham Road Gateway’ development opportunity will 
help to improve the city centre?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

4) Do you think the ‘District Council House’ development opportunity will help 
to improve the city centre?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Page 98



        

3

5) Do you think the ‘Bird Street Courtyard’ development opportunity will help to 
improve the city centre? 

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

6) Do you think the ‘University West Car Park’ development opportunity will 
help to improve the city centre?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

7) Are there any additional Development Opportunities that should be 
considered?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

D. PUBLIC REALM PRIORITIES
Public Realm Priorities have been identified, to deliver improvements to 
patterns of movement within the city centre.

8) Do you think the ‘Birmingham Road Corridor’ interventions will improve 
pedestrian accessibility to the city centre from Lichfield City train station?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Page 99



        

4

9) Do you think the ‘Lichfield Transport Hub’ will enhance the arrival experience 
to the city by bus, coach, train and taxi?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

10) Do you think the ‘Bird Street Walk’ interventions will make this route safer 
and more welcoming? 

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

11) Do you think a ‘Circular Minster Pool Walk’ will encourage more people to 
use the Minster Pool area?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

12) Do you think the ‘pedestrian priority streets’ interventions will improve 
pedestrian safety?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

13) Do you think the improvements to ‘pedestrian walkways and linkages’ will 
enhance pedestrian access and safety? 

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Page 100



        

5

14) Do you think ‘clear and consistent signage’ will make it easier for people to 
navigate their way around the city centre? 

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

15) Are there any additional Public Realm Priorities that should be considered?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

E. MASTERPLAN DELIVERY
16) Do you think the Delivery Strategy provides a sensible way forward for 

implementing the masterplan?

Yes    ☐  No    ☐  (If you responded ‘no’ please explain why)  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

17) Do you have any further comments?
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Thank you for taking the time to                             
complete this questionnaire

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C – Lichfield City centre master planning proposed work programme and timetable.

Stage 1 (commencing 29 July 2019)

Key Tasks: Analysis and review of baseline materials
Mapping of Constraints and opportunities
Urban design analysis and review
Benchmarking city centre
Initial market review
Transport and movement review
Initial options generation

Key deliverables: Analysis, Issues and Options Report 

Engagement Stakeholder ‘surgery’ sessions with priority stakeholders (wc 16.09)

Key meetings Inception meeting (wc 29.07)
Officer & Member meetings (wc 30.09)

Stage 2 (Commencing 07 October)

Key tasks: Draft masterplan report comprising:
Draft key sites layouts and uses
Draft Transport and Movement Strategy
Draft Public Realm Strategy
Draft Viability and delivery Strategy
Draft consultation and engagement materials
Attend Economic Development, Environment and Development Scrutiny Committee – EGED 

Key deliverables Draft Masterplan for publication to special meeting of EGED 
Draft consultation and engagement materials for publication to special meeting of EGED 

Engagement Four week exhibition – online and agreed locations (wc 06.01.20)
Advertise in advance, facilitate online submission of comments
Target key groups inviting them to submit comments.

Key meetings Economic Growth, Environment and development Scrutiny committee – EGED (17.12.19)

Stage 3 (commencing 03 February)

Key tasks Analysis of consultation and engagement results
Recommendations on amendments to the draft masterplan report
Update and finalise masterplan report

Key deliverables Consultation report
Finalised masterplan 
Attend Economic Development, Environment and Development Scrutiny Committee – EGED 

Key meetings Economic Development, Environment and Development Scrutiny meeting – EGED (11.3.20)
Cabinet (10.4.2020)

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Lichfield City Centre Master Plan - Draft for Consultation
	Appendix A - Lichfield City Centre Draft Masterplan Report - December 2019
	Appendix B Front sheet Consultation methodology and promotional material
	Appendix B - Consultation Leaflet
	Appendix B - Consultation Flyer
	Appendix B - A Board Poster
	Appendix B -  Masterplan Questionnaire
	Appendix C




